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Harry Eagar, The Maui News

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm going to call the Land Use Committee meeting to order.
(gavel) This morning we have all the Council members present and
Planning Department is here, Julie and Clayton Yoshida. Julie Higa and
Clayton Yoshida are here. Excuse me, everybody except Jo Anne
Johnson is present.
This morning we're gonna have three different items come before us and
we're going to start with testimony. Because we have only a little bit of
testimony, I'm gonna allow the testimony for all the items to be heard right
now and then after this we're gonna get into the different areas.
So first to speak on Land Use 13 will be Bob Babson. He will be followed
by Mr. Edward Smith.
(pause while Mr. Babson walks to the podium)
... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

MR. BABSON: Uh, yes, Mr. Chairman and Council members thank you for
allowing me to testify. This is a wonderful, wonderful day that as I read
this agenda correctly we're considering today to add the rural, uh,
agricultural zoning and the historic districts to the bed and breakfast
ordinance. This will save the County tens of thousands of dollars, reduce
the paperwork substantially and I favor it wholeheartedly. As you know
the bed and breakfast ordinance is far more streamlined. A Type I bed
and breakfast is simply approved by the Planning Director himself, a Type
II bed and breakfast is approved by the Planning Commission, and a Type
III is simply a resolution by the County Council, whereas a conditional use
permit, uh, which I had to go through since I'm in rural zoning, requires all
the way first and second reading and then all the way to the Mayor for
signature which costs tremendous extra money and a lot of extra
processing.
So I'm all in favor of adding rural and agricultural and historic district and
simplifying the process and bringing more people on board to be beds and
breakfasts. Thanks you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, any questions for Bob? Welcome, Jo Anne.
Smith. Ed Smith will be testifying on items 13 and 30.
(pause while Mr. Smith walks to the podium)

Ed
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MR. SMITH: Yeah, aloha everybody. My name is Smithy. Edward Smith from
Pukalani. Some of you know me, some of you don't. Do I have the same
three minutes or I get two--I signed up for two items so-CHAIR ARAKAWA: You may have three minutes on either item, on both items.
So six minutes total.
MR. SMITH: But which one do I have to speak on first?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Your choice.
MR. SMITH: Uh ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Your choice
MR. SMITH: Okay, I'll speak on the bed and breakfast. As a country boy, here
on Maui following my father's footsteps, I'm totally opposed and against
bed and breakfast in our rural/agriculture areas. I personally have gone
through a tremendous amount of trauma with drug dealers, physical
attacks, physical assaults on me by groups that utilize bed and breakfast
facilities Upcountry. I've had helicopters fly over our property and drop
illegal substance by mistake into my property and which I had retaliation
physically from the Brazilians or the Peru group, and this has been going
on for many years. We got no positive assistance from the Police
Department to stop or eliminate these problems. As an example you had
in Lahaina where there was a drug raid that had almost 75 to 80 member
drug ring. I don't know why it got to that point, what the Police Department
was doing, but it took the, the effort of the Federal to come in and put a
stop to it. This is the example what I'm talking about. We don't get
protection from our Police Department. We get harassed. When we
complain about these illegal activities, stealing from us, trespassing on our
property, threatening us, etcetera, we get threatened. The seniors
especially get threatened. We are the victims. We are the victims and we
get no protection at all. And until something can be done to strengthen
these loopholes--I think Jo, Jo Anne Johnson is the only one from all of
you that get guts enough to tell everybody stop. Let's turn off this car
engine, let's check the oil, let's check the water in the radiator. Let's do
something maintenance here. Let's back up, let's retreat, regroup and
strengthen ourselves ... repair what we have, reorganize. And this is
what I'm asking for. I'm asking for you folks to cooperate with Jo Anne
Johnson and help her instead of going forward and shoving this bed and
breakfast down our throats again and go through this same problem of
death threats, physical threats, drug problems everything else, let's wait
until we get enough funding to see where the problems are in our Police
Department and correct these problems. Just put a stop in your car,
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check your car engine. Check your oil, make sure your engine gonna last
for another 100 years instead of dragging us down the street.
So as far as bed and breakfast I've gone through personal (inaudible) but
they're afraid to talk up, I'm not. I'll take on any drug ring and the Police
Department if I have to to put a stop to it. I'm not against bed and
breakfast, but I look at it this way. When you talk about bed and breakfast
or transits, you're not talking about tourists. You're talking about a bunch
of beach bums that going come in here and the only people that gonna be
making money on them are gonna be the owners of the property and the
parasailing companies at our expense. I say no. That's wrong. You
wanna do bed and breakfast I say fine. Do it down beach. Do it down the
beach. I myself chewed out four people out of a resort area on Oahu for
utilizing, breaking the house rules, utilizing drugs in a house that had
house rules. I personally chewed them out. And I don't have to be
fighting with my neighbors because they wanna have bed and breakfast
and they cannot even control their own activities. They cannot enforce
their own house rules because they are afraid or they too greedy to make
money. I cannot be fighting with everybody about this or because of this.
So I ask you Council people consider the residents first, the local people,
the seniors, the people who live here and wanna die in peace here. So
that's all I have to say for bed and breakfast.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Item 13--or 30.
MR. SMITH: Okay, the next item is this, uh, called youth center. I'm not too
familiar with them, with these youth centers down on the bottom of my
street. I live on Aliiolani, that's several streets above where this group
originally started by that same house on Haulani Street and the youths
they had there was stealing from us all the way up in to my property on
Aliiolani Street. They were damaging my property on Aliiolani Street. Two
years ago they made off of over $5,000 worth of merchandise on my
property on Aliiolani Street with police protection, police escort. And the
Police Department refuse to file a complaint because they also were
involved. I don't know what kind of program they had going on using
these youths for white slavery to go out and do some kind of home service
in __ ranch, my property, to make more Federal money, put in again
trauma on us, stealing from us, stealing our resources, my resources.
What I have in my property might look like rubbish to somebody, but I
make money with it. I sell it. I use it. Everything I utilize
And, uh, you folks had a hearing back in ... I think it was 1996 where the
whole package came together, uh, the Youth Center people came
together and some of the people against the Youth Centers came in here
and talk to you folks. In each in everyone of your copies, there's a
photocopies of the news printout from the Maui publishing company. I, I
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like you, I like you to look at one statement that really struck me. This
remark was made by a Colette Thomas, a youth worker. She says they
have no control over the youths. They do what they like. She says we
allow them to be themselves. Swearing, fighting, harassing the neighbors,
etcetera, etcetera. If that's the Youth Center to correct our youths in
society .... I gotta ... I have a different definition for the name of that
center. That's a hangout, a hideout for bunch of hoodlums. If, if the
youths are allowed to participate in a vulgar manner, and in a threatening
manner, etcetera, etcetera, with the youth workers, they belong in boot
camp. They belong in boot camp. They belong down Waimanalo, not in
any of our areas because when they leave that property they're going out
and they raise the hell with us. I've been fighting with the Police
Department for about three weeks now because they coming on my street
with their boom boxes yelling, swearing, screaming, and threatening my life
right on the street when I go to the mailbox to get mail. And none of them
have been arrested, none of them have been referred to any counselors to
correct them, or psychiatrist to correct them. So again, there's another
problem here. There's no discipline. There's no training. All these youth
centers are interested in is getting Federal funding, sticking in their pocket
and go to hell with their neighbors. They're not training nobody. They're
not helping these youths. I spend my own time and my own money on
Oahu working with youth, the youth programs. I'm with the YMCA with
Jaime Harris. If the kids don't, if the kids get out of line, they, they get one
safety shoe in their back side then they go back to Waimanalo. That's
training. My grandfather use, he was a blind man when he was 17 years
old he used his shaving strap on my butt, that was training. I never went
out of line after that. Some of our laws are absurd where the parents get
sued by their children because they're gonna use a ruler or a, a shoe butt
on their back side. Our society has gone berserk. I cannot continue too
long. It's too lengthy. I got about a half ton pick up truck at home with
documents on this issue, but I want you to read, re-read the copies I gave
you on the Maui printout on these youth centers and the bed and
breakfast issues, and the problems that we encounter as residents, people
that buy there to live there to raise their families, or to just live on the
God's law with the animals. And senior citizens looking for a place of
tranquility and peace of mind. It's up to you folks. I go along with Jo Anne
Johnson. I kinda like her to lower our land tax rate though. I'm on Federal
social security but if, it's up to you. But let's back up. Let's correct what
has to be corrected and this includes the kids. I'm not against the youth. I
was a young guy once myself and I'm still working with youth programs on
Oahu. But I still favor the home rule is the ruler on the butt.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, you all done?
MR. SMITH: That's alii got to say. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Ed Smith?
MR. SMITH: If anybody got any questions, I'm here now.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If not, thank you Mr. Smith.
MR. SMITH: All right, thank you .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

LU-30

REQUEST FROM MAUl YOUTH AND FA MIL Y SERVICES,
INC.,
FOR
A
CONDITIONAL
PERMIT

(c.c.

No. 00-275)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're going to be taking up Land Use item number 30 next
and we're gonna ask Marie Kimmey, Gail Gnazzo, and Helen McCord to
come down, and that they're gonna be making their presentation right
after we have the department making their presentation. So I want them
to get ready to, urn, make the presentation.
So Land Use 30 is a request for Maui Youth & Family Services,
Incorporated for a Conditional Permit. Clayton, take the department
presentation.
MS. HIGA: I have a videotape.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. HIGA: (10-minute video presentation regarding Maui Youth & Family
Services property)
This is the Maui Youth & Family Service site. It's, this is on Baldwin
Avenue looking towards, going up towards Makawao and beyond this is
the job corps site. Is about, the entry way is about 1,000 feet maybe. And
next to the Maui Youth & Family Services property is the, is surrounded by
single family on the north and south side where the Paia and Makawao
side of the property. This is Baldwin Avenue. Across the street is cane
fields. If you notice there is a fire hydrant on the Makawao side of the
property. There's a historic house that use to be the former Baldwin
house on the property that you see in the white and with the green roof
The drive way, the Fire Department recommended another fire hydrant
and so it would be located on the north side of the property which is on
this side of the property. On the north side or Paia side is the single family
dwelling as well as the Maui Land & Pineapple Company, urn, housing,
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employee housing for the field workers. The rear of the property is gulch
and basically like a forest. If you noticed Baldwin Avenue is, um, there's
no curbs, gutters or sidewalks. This is across the street with the cane
fields and then across the street to the Makawao side is the single family
dwelling and _ ditch. This is now on the property and at the time I went
on site there was some construction going on. The neighbor, if you can
see in the background is a white house, there's a single family dwelling.
This gray building on the left is the boy's dormitory, currently the boy's
dormitory. And the applicant is proposing to house the girl's dormitory into
this, what is now the boy's dormitory and the new construction will be
located between this gray building and the white historic property towards
the rear. The, uh ... no, this is the site of the proposed new construction.
The boy's dormitory is there right now. If you can notice there's a lot of
mature trees growing on the property. The Department of Land and
Natural Resources recommended that the plans be reviewed by them
when the applicant is renovating the historic house as well as if there's
any kind of ground activity they wanted their archaeological branch to
review the site. They also requested a archaeological inventory since
there has not been one done for this property. The applicant also
constructed a septic system on the site next to the historic property and is
acquiring a permit for that as well as for an addition that was constructed
to the boy's dormitory. If you noticed that area in the rear of the boy's
dormitory they added a addition. So they need to get an after-the-fact
building permit for that. There's a, on the left hand side where you see the
vacant dirt area is the septic tank that was constructed, and they need to
get a permit for that. They did get the Department of Health approval,
after-the-fact Department of Health approval. The new girl's dormitory
then would be right behind this clump of trees if you notice and the septic
tank system is in front of that tree area. So you notice basically the new
building that's the boy's dormitory, current boy's dormitory will barely be
seen from I think from the Baldwin Avenue because of the topography as
well as the trees in that area and the landscaping that the applicant is
proposing. This is the back of the boy's dormitory. And since this was
taken, there's a new addition that was added. The applicant will be
describing the details of the building as well as their program and what the
program is about. So I won't get into that. The, other than the State
Historic Preservation Division's comments and the Fire Department's
comments regarding the fire hydrant, the applicant is required to add
some fire things within the structure itself as well as, uh, the Board of
Water Supply mentioned that the site was above the Paia aquifer and
requested that they connect to the, uh, provide the fire hydrant on site,
additional fire hydrant on site. That was it. Are there any questions?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any questions for department? No questions. Okay,
if not, now we'll bring down the Maui Youth & Family Service group.
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MS. KIMMEY: Good afternoon-CHAIR ARAKAWA: When you speak Marie, could you identify yourself first and
always identify yourself first for the record.
MS. KIMMEY: Yes. I'm Marie Kimmey. I'm, uh, an architect with Riecke
Sunland Konno Architects and I have been working on this Maui Youth &
Family Services project. The, I would like to mention some of the
concerns or some of the things that Julie had brought up before I go into
my testimony.
The building permit for the addition has been obtained. That was a small
addition and that's all now in the works or it's done I should say.
The septic system that was installed not too long ago up there has also
been approved by the Health Department.
The ... I would like to clarify that the older building will be used for the
girl's dormitory. The newer building is going to be housing boys.
The site has been in use by Maui Youth & Family Services since about
1982 as a substance--I'm sorry--as a shelter, an emergency shelter for
teenage youths who have no place to stay overnight. They are housed
there for a short period of time. It's one of the historic Baldwin homes on
Makawao Avenue. The County leases the property to Maui Youth &
Family Services for a very nominal fee annually.
In 1996 and '97, the second residence on the site was constructed and
that is the one that we will be moving the girls into, it currently houses
boys. Our job as architects was to design a structure very similar to the
girls home, but much sturdier for the boys.
The ... both homes will house children who have not only home
problems, but also their own problems with substance abuse. It's kind of a
combination. What these homes amount to both the boys and the girls
home are group homes with counselors. The site is remote enough from
neighbors. I apologize to Mr. Smith if any damage has been caused by
these students, uh, or I'm sorry, clients, but I WOUld, I would not think that
would be the case. I would not be going into program. I'm simply here to
discuss the structures.
The new house that is to be built, it's the third residence on the lot and we
have actually, as Julie has said, worked with the Fire Department and the
Water Department and finally last week came to a decision that we would
follow the Water Department's request for the hydrant along the road. We
will be, urn, the project includes a new 12-inch waterline from an existing
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hydrant on the property down about 250 feet downhill down Baldwin
Avenue with a new hydrant. The County Water Supply Department is
sharing the costs of that waterline since an 8-inch line would be adequate
for Maui Youth & Family Services, but the Water Department sees that as
a good opportunity to put in a 12-inch line. They will be paying the
difference between the two. In addition, urn, because it's the third
residence on the site, Water Department has come up with a plan that we
worked on now for several months and I believe it's just at the point where
it's been agreed to or we will have that in writing this week, uh, that we will
be getting a increased size waterline from 5/8's inch to ~ inch which will be
sufficient to provide water for all three buildings. There are other parts to
that agreement that I won't go into now so suffice to say it is unique.
Let's see, I understand in your packets you have some plans that we sent
over via e-mail, urn, these were scanned drawings of the site initially. I
don't have-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Excuse me, Marie. It's the last three pages in the binder.
MS. KIMMEY: Okay, if you folks will just flip to those now, I'm, uh, I don't have a
copy with me. I was told maybe it would be something flashed on the wall.
I don't, I don't have the ability of saying what's flashed on the wall since
it's in your binders. The, uh, I will discuss first of all the site plan.
The site as you can see is a fairly large site. It's about three and half, little
over three and half acres. The buildings are clustered fairly close to one
another on what is sort of the rear third, urn, basically the rear third of the
parcel. The drawing that you have in front of you does not show the entire
site. It focuses on the building, uh, buildings. The entire site is--well,
again, as I say what you're seeing here is sort of the top third, maybe top
right hand half, right hand half top third. The rest of the property has a
fairly steep slope coming up from Baldwin Avenue to the buildings. The
existing residence 1 as shown on this drawing is the historic Baldwin
Home and I'm sure most of you have seen that as you drive up Makawao
Avenue, it's quite a charming building, and I feel that Maui Youth & Family
Services has maintained the building fairly well. There is a consideration
of re-siting the outside of the structure, but in the mean time the inside has
been kept well-maintained and painted.
The existing residence 2 on your drawing is that, urn, residence which is
now "the boy's home" and will be the girls. It's a frame structure. And the
addition, the drawing you see in front of you includes the addition which is
a footprint that is sort of the half on the right hand portion of that drawing
the, uh, the upper corner is about half that back space is the new addition.
It was about 400 square feet for a recreation room that they needed very
much.
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The new building as you can see is essentially the same footprint although
it was flipped to fit the site better. We included in the new building
initially--I mean first go around includes that recreation room which the
agency discovered it needed. So the new building is essentially a repeat
in floor plan of the old building very similar. The big difference with a new
building is that it's a concrete block building inside and out.
I'd go then next to sheet A-1 which is the floor plan. As you can see,
again, it' a fairly simple structure. We have five bedrooms. The middle
room, urn, dinning and entertainments or great room, is supported by
kitchen, pantry, and a full bath for, it's actually a facility with three
showers, three toilets, and three lavatories. At this point we have gone
ahead and applied for a building permit. The Health Department has
approved this structure. The, basically right now we're down to three--oh,
we're down to two approvals because we took care of fire last week. So
the only two approvals remaining are water, which as I say I think if it's not
signed off now it will be by the end of this week. Engineering is the other
sign off. And they have said that as soon as Water signs off they will sign.
So basically we have a building permit or will by the end of this week. I'm
afraid we got caught, as architects we don't always know all the in's and
out's of County regs so we were not aware that this had to go through
conditional use permitting. There is a contractor, DJ(?) Construction. In
fact we're going up tomorrow morning for a pre-construction meeting. So I
do urge this Committee to pass this along and the Council to act on it fairly
quickly.
I will point out what is unique about this building is that not only are the
exterior walls are concrete block 8-inch thick, the interior walls are a 4-inch
thick concrete block. One of the problems they were experiencing in other
homes with boys in it is that they intend to get angry and punch holes in
walls. Much better they punch holes in walls than against neighbors. And
so that's something that actually the maintenance man has thought the
boys how to repair the walls, but we felt a more solid building would be
better.
I'll pass you along then to page A-2, which are three of the four elevations
of the building. As you can see it's, it's very bare bones. We did not get
too fancy. The, uh ... it's blocked. It will be painted. Very simple
aluminum window system. We have skylights and we, urn, in this drawing
it shows a solar water system. That was not approved by, in the end
under contract negotiation. One of the reasons being was that the trees,
which this building nestles among, probably would prevent it from being a
very effective system. It has been determined that since the kitchen,
which is essentially a commercial kitchen, will be using gas. We will be
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installing gas water heaters as well and, and not, and solar does not work
with gas so that's been eliminated.
The front entry has been simplified from this drawing, again, what we call
value engineering. It will be a simple two-doors on the lower windows but
not the upper window or eyebrow. So basically they are getting a bare
bones building, but one that, um, the agency feels will be a very useful
building. The, initially they will be taking up to 10, um, this was in
agreement with the Fire Department, but there will be in the end ability to
take up 15 boys at anyone time. I believe these facilities tend to run
about a little under what their numbers are called for, but they do have
adequate staff. I'm not going to go into the program of the facilities.
That's, uh, Gail Gnazzo and Helen McCord, the president of the Board of
Directors of MYFS, will be addressing those issues.
So basically that ends my, my presentation, but I'd be happy to answer
any questions you might have.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any questions for Marie? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon. Thank
you for your presentation. One of the issues that I have is, and I think it
was mentioned earlier, is the proximity of a boy's facility and a girl's facility
and they being--and you mentioned yourself that they are relatively close
to each other--does that cause any problems to the program as far as
compromising the integrity of the program and making sure that the boys
and girls don't mingle together?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain. Marie's-MS. KIMMEY: To be honest with you--yeah, I think that's probably not my, my-COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
because of that issue.

No, I'm talking about the building placement

MS. KIMMEY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So I think there is some relevance to the question of
asking the architect why the building was put in this place versus having it
placed further a part and therefore having some controls-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. If you're dealing with architecture that's fine. Marie's
the architect. The program side Gail can answer a lot better.
MS. KIMMEY: Well, I'll take a stab since he's asked of the architect. When we
discussed site in terms of where to site the new building, we had several
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other suggestions. One that we looked at was closer to the existing water
hydrant and--fire hydrant, excuse me, and may not have required the extra
run of, uh ... but, and it was more in front of the property. It was
determined that it would be more beneficial to the neighborhood to have
the building set behind the emergency shelter which, again as JUlie has
stated, kind of puts it between those two buildings. I do know that there
was a time when there had some problems with the emergency shelter.
People leaving through windows. I believe that since has been corrected
with screens that no longer allow egress and I am certain that Gail can
answer better, but as I say we looked at several options of how to site this,
and it was determined that to sort of tuck it under the trees, off the road so
that the kids kinda don't see the road and don't get the idea well, I can run
away and run down the road, seemed a better solution to all the people
who made the decision.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you.
placement of the facility, not, not--

And again that was just a

MS. KIMMEY: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Oh, and-MS. KIMMEY: No problem. (chuckled)
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's another issue with you guys. So we'll talk
about that if necessary. Thanks.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any other questions for Marie? If not, thank you
Marie.
MS. KIMMEY: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Gail, you're gonna present next or Helen? You're up.
MS. GNAZZO: Hello, members of the Committee. My name is Gail Gnazzo and
what I had intended to do is to show you-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Gail, bring the mike closer to your mouth.
MS. GNAZZO: To show you a portion of a video that appeared on O'leio. It
gives a description of some of our residential programs and then we have
a former resident who speaks and then I'd be more than happy to answer
questions.
(pause while staff sets up for video presentation)
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(10-minute video presentation of the Maui Youth & Family Services
residential program)
Aloha, and welcome to giving aloha. Today's program is about Maui
Youth & Family Services, a private, non profit organization on Maui. The
mission is to build better lives with Hawaii's families.
The organization operates 13 programs focusing on the emotional and
behavior about working with children and families.
With us today are Deborah (inaudible) Program Director, who will be the
spoken person for the residential program. Carol Wright, the Director of
the Substance Abuse Treatment Program, and Keith DeRego, Jr., a
current participant in the Substance Abuse Treatment Program.
Welcome.
Thank you.
Before we begin our discussion we're gonna see a brief video introducing
Maui Youth & Family Services. One thing that you will notice in this is the
absence of clear views of the youth in the program. This is because their
identities must be kept confidential. The people who are identifiable have
given their permission or are actors.
(music background)
During more than two decades of operation, Maui Youth & Family
Services have evolved.
In 1978 after a Maui County sponsorship, they began as a organization
operating as a residential youth shelter, providing health and care to
young people (inaudible)
Today it is a long time service organization (inaudible) from prevention to
early intervention through treatment.
Maui Youth & Family Services operates five State licensed residential
facilities for youth ages 10 through 19. In Lahaina the Independent
(inaudible) Program, ILT, takes to care older abused and neglect abused
or other (inaudible) with emotional or behavior disorders (inaudible) a
long-term residential care.
The goal of the program is to (inaudible) in the opposition of skills needed
for a productive independent living and main stream propriety.
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The residential intensive group homes for boys and (inaudible) for girls is
defined for youngsters who need intensive treatment and care because of
emotional problems and behavior disorder, but for the emotional goal
(inaudible)
The goal of MYFS therapeutic group home program is to provide
therapeutic family base alternatives to institutionalization for troubled
abuse or neglect abuse as a means of returning them to and maintaining
them in their community as effective individuals.
Ho'omaka Hou, the beginning of a new life, is a residential substance
abuse treatment program licensed by the Department of Health of the
Residential Treatment Center, and accredited by the State Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Department for youths with problems with alcohol, other
drugs or issues related to substance abuse. One (inaudible) therapeutic
program combined with a safe, controlled environment. It is designed to
foster chemical independence for youths ages 12 through 17 by means of
a comprehensive treatment and program. A professional and their
professional staff is trained in substance abuse and adolescence care,
and provides youth with 24 hour intervention.
Ho'omaka Hou I is for boy's residence in Makawao and Ho'omaka Hou II
is the girl's residence located in Pukalani.
The purpose approach to substance abuse treatment is the belief that
addiction (inaudible) affecting the body, mind and spirit. As such,
Ho'omaka Hou approaches treatment on three different components.
First, an (inaudible) learning component at which youths participate in a
variety of physical activity designed to expand interest and foster
enjoyment of drug-free activity.
Second, an educational component that provides youth of extensive
knowledge and understanding of substance use and abuse while
addressing the importance of learning and expanding the skills needed for
effective mind.
And third, the spiritual component designed to instill in our young one's of
drug (inaudible) and facilitate individuals recognition of personal
(inaudible)
All of Maui Youth & Family Services have an overwhelming goal
(inaudible) The participation of the family or (inaudible) is mandatory.
The program has its basic philosophy: a belief that if youths are provided
the opportunity to succeed within a safe and prepared environment, they
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will respond positively; provided with correction and (inaudible) positive
encouragement many young adults achieve dreams and goals clear with
the thought to be unattainable.
Since its mission is to build better lives with Hawaii families, Maui Youth &
Family Services have developed a wide array of community-base
services. (inaudible) disciplinary programs and services touch upon
virtually every aspect of family life in Hawaii serving more than 2,000
individuals and families each year.
A very welcome. Carol, why don't we start with you. Actually not Carol,
Deborah. Deborah. How do you determine which residential program is
appropriate for a client.
Between the five programs that we have, each child is treated individually.
It's not uncommon for a child to begin in an emergency shelter situation
like being placed in a shelter even by a parent or the police or (inaudible)
worker. From that point, we work with the Department of Health Care
Coordinator to determine which placement is appropriate. If substance
dependency is the main focus of the child's treatment, then they of course
would go to the Substance Abuse Residential Treatment facility.
In the living program it takes clients that are a little bit older. Usually ages
16 to 19. So if we have a child that's in, that's in need of a place, that's a
little older, they would go to the ILT Program because that will then
(inaudible) to teach them, as the video mentioned, how to integrate into
society in a positive productive manner. Residential (change of tape)
some times takes clients from sub--not takes from but receive clients from
Substance Abuse Program because then their substance abuse issues
have been, um, dealt with in the real recovery and then we inherit them,
we bring them along, take them to another level of productive functioning.
Carol can tell you a lot of their clientele go right at home from the
Substance Abuse Program. So if a client is in need of a little bit more
treatment before they can be successfully re-integrated into their family
they might go to Residential Intensive Program, or if they come into the
system they don't really have the substance abuse dependency, then they
would be appropriate for Residential Intensive Program.
The Therapeutic Group Home is for clients who can function with a little
less structure than the residential setting, then 24 hours around the clock
(inaudible) So the Therapeutic Group Home children usually go to public
schools and then they receive the structure, um, evenings that the foster
homes with a collaborative treatment approach with all the parties
involved, the foster parents working with the school to ensure that
treatment does in fact cover the full day, but just not in quite the same
amount of structure.
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How is education incorporated in the other, urn, programs?
You
mentioned that it's incorporated in a therapeutic--okay, what is it all
together?
Residential Intensive Program and Ho'omaka Hou wanted to operate
independent schooling. A lot of times when kids come to us, urn, one of
the common things we see is that their education has suffered greatly. So
we have the ability to give them intense one-on-one structured learning
atmosphere in these independent schools. We have qualified teachers.
We have an administrator that oversees the school. And it, it, it's actually
not uncommon for some of these clients to come and learn how to read
while they are in school. We see a lot of self-esteem rise because the
client came thinking I'm no good at school, I can't handle school, I'm
stupid--and then what they find out when they get into a structured
environment with the support of all the staff, they realize I'm smart. I'm not
dumb. I can do this. And we see a lot of children come in and actually
make, make up for the lost time, make up for the credits that they're
missing and move--either go back to normal school setting or receive GED
or the competency base test.
So that for me is one of the most exciting components actually of our
Residential Program, to see kids come in that may have had really bad
school experiences and they come in and you see them blossom
educationally and their esteem rises and it's just a really, really
encouraging phenomenal to witness.
But it seems like a perfect time to talk to Keith. Keith, what was your life
like before going to Maui Youth & Family Services.
Urn, unmanageable. Like all I wanted to do was just do drugs. Get into
trouble. Partying. I got myself locked up in Ko'olau and then ... this is
my second time around in treatment. I was, um, treatment in Oahu for five
months. I ran away 'cause my girlfriend had pregnancy problems with her
pregnancy. So I ran away to be with her. Then I turned myself in and
then I find out about this program and I came to this program to see if it
would work and it did work.
How _ _ did you get involved with this program?
about it or how did you find out?

How did you hear

The court system.
system.

Basically the court

The court system pretty much.

Did they brought it to your attention that this program exists and you called
them yourself?
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My director, the care coordinator.
And I think a lot of people watching would wanna know what's a typical
day like?
Just, we get up at 7 o'clock. We have breakfast. Do our chores after
breakfast pretty much. We jump in the van, go to school for three hours.
We have school. We come back. We have lunch and we do our chores
again after lunch and we have like maybe like half an hour activity time or
we do our treatment program, we do our homework, and we have an hour
of dedication with our counselors. We talk about our problems what we're
having today ... weekends.
When you say treatment program, what does that involve?
Treatment program is just to better your life because like if you don't go to
a program and you can't do it on your own so that's what mostly a
treatment program is there for to help you out to learn . . . to learn the
ways of living a better life sober.
And how has being in the program changed your life?
Change my life a whole lot. I do much better in school. Went from a 0.0
grade average to a B and A.
Terrific.
And they're helping me be a better parent, taking me to parenting classes,
showing me responsibilities and learning about myself more and other
people to cope with other people better and just be a responsible person
and respectful.
These are the kinds of stories I'd like to hear. Carol, what's the difference
between substance use and substance abuse?
Well, substance use is where they're experimenting and they begin to
drink or smoke marijuana, um ... (end of video presentation)
MS. GNAZZO: I know you're all dying to see this tape. Are there questions that I
can answer for you?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I think the concern has to be past
history when I read about ... I read on Page 8, uh, top of the line in the
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docket with the October 4th cover letter. And it reads and I think Mr. Kane
had some concerns and I'm, I may not have concerns after I hear the
answers.
A proposed new building will be used for Residential Substance Abuse
Treatment Facility for girls which will accommodate up to 18. And then it
talks about the current facility is located in a house in Pukalani with five
residents as a measure of compromise as the neighbors who objected to
the program's presence in their neighborhood. This has resulted in many
girls being refused service due to the lack of space. According to the
applicant, the window of opportunity to get a youngster in to treatment is
small and many will be lost forever. The new building will replicate the
existing boy's facility and will have 6 bedrooms, 3 baths, 2 study rooms,
kitchen and living room. Prior to that it talks about the 18 beds that you
have in, on the same property which houses 18 boys. Then I read with
interest that this will be used for Residential Substance Abuse Treatment
Facility for girls. Is this also the same for boys that these are all kids that
have drug problems, number one. And are they being sent to you via the
court system as an alternative.
MS. GNAZZO: Okay, most ofthe-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then the final concern is this, I think many of us
are concerned about numbers and probably the ability or the inability for
women--and in this case young boys and young girls to be housed that
already have existing problems and to be in the same vicinity, uh, and how
much exposure do they have for, within each other and is there any kind
of control? I see where there's 24 hour 1 adult per 5 I think adults--per 5
kids in this program. But what kind of problems do you have, and have
you had problems before.
MS. GNAZZO: We had difficulties when it was a coed living situation when we
had boys and girls living in the same facility. We have a separate facility
for boys, we will have a separate-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How far apart are they?
MS. GNAZZO: I'm not sure, well, it hasn't been, it hasn't, it's-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, they're on the same property.
MS. GNAZZO: It's on, almost 3 % acres of land, but they will be in some
proximity. What we have done recently is integrated our schools system.
We had separate programs for Ho'omaka Hou the group home boys and
girls, and it's now integrated, and we're finding that we're not having
significant problems with that, with correct supervision.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this, how strict is the supervision?
When they stay there, do they have time to wander and meander?
MS. GNAZZO: No, they don't. The program is structured so that there's very
little free time. And when they do have free time, it's supervised free time.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's supervised.
MS. GNAZZO: It's supervised. We have one staff for every five kids in the
program, but never less than two staff. So even if we had five kids we
would still have two staff on board. We're licensed for 18. We have never
had 18 in the program. We think a good number is about 12, 15 max. So
we don't intend to use the license that exist.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. This brings to mind then are we saying that
this community and surrounding neighborhood cannot expect to see you
come in here for adding more bed space on this particular piece of
property that you now lease from Maui County for one dollar a year until
the year--what?--2015 or 2010. I'm not sure. I can't remember, 20 ...
MS. GNAZZO: It's a 25-year lease and I believe we've been there 10 years
under the current lease.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, so you got another 15.
MS. GNAZZO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So can we expect that this facility will not expand
its bed space?
MS. GNAZZO: I don't intend--if there were a need in the community-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What if I put a condition on it?
MS. GNAZZO: Pardon me.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What if we put a condition on it?
MS. GNAZZO: You could put a condition on it. All I'm saying is that if the
community determine that there is a need that exceeds what is currently
there, I think that we all need to at least be open to looking at what our
community needs.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, my concern is control and the ability or
inability to run a program that expands its numbers despite that there may
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be people that need treatment and, and you just don't squeeze 'em
because these are kids that have problems into a facility where you have
too many.
MS. GNAZZO: Right. We are licensed by the hospitals the, urn, Quality
Assurance Division of the hospitals. We are also accredited by the
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Divisions and there are certain standards that we
have to maintain in terms of space and numbers of clients. They come in
annually to monitor. So there's no question about that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There is no questions about what, numbers?
MS. GNAZZO: Expanding beyond the license capacity of a facility.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maybe I wasn't listening very nicely. What is the
license ability of a facility?
MS. GNAZZO: It depends on the physical capacity and the staffing capacity.
The physical capacity of Ho'omaka Hou I is licensed at 18. We have
never taken 18 kids into the program. Our emergency shelter that is sited
on the same property is licensed for 10. So it's determined by the
licensing body, but also the program demands and we're not looking at
making it an 18-bed program, but initially when we went in with the first
facility there are 6 bedrooms and 3 youngsters could be housed in a
bedroom.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll allow other members to ask questions. I got
many more but that's all right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Hi, Gail. Following up on
the amount of clients, looking at Page 13 of the application, it says here
that although the maximum capacity is 18 beds, uh, they, meaning the
applicant, will probably maintain 15 girls which will require 1 staff youth
technician per 5 girls for 24-hours and 1 staff counselor per 5 girls during
the day. As of this time are you committed to just staying at 15 and for
how long?
MS. GNAZZO: Programmatically 15 works. We have never had 15 kids in the
program. We've been around 12, 13 in the boys program. So we look at
the individual youngsters when they come in. We look at the mix of the
current--when we're taking a new client in, we really look at who's already
there and we make a decision based on that, how many youngsters would
be there and what our capacity is as well as what their potential is.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So nothing in the immediate future that
you foresee this going past 15.
MS. GNAZZO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, any other questions? Pat.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon. You said that
you folks are monitored how often?
MS. GNAZZO: We're monitored at least annually. First by the Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Division which is responsible for the program content-VICE CHAIR KAWANO: So who monitor you?
MS. GNAZZO: Child and Adolescent Mental Health also comes in because we
have contracts with them. Family Court comes in and does monitoring
because we have contracts with them, and then the hospitals division
comes in to monitor on a licensing basis.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: This is all local?
MS. GNAZZO: They are ... they are State agencies.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: State but-MS. GNAZZO: Right.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: --I mean, what I mean is from Maui or from Oahu or
where?
MS. GNAZZO: They're from Oahu.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Oahu.
MS. GNAZZO: Right.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: And then the ages you say 5 to 1. So are they, the 5 is
all same ages or about what ages they run up?
MS. GNAZZO: The 5 to 1 is 5 clients to 1 staff person. The clients range from
12 years old to 17 years old with the possible exception when someone
has come into the program and turns 18 we let them finish the program,
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but we don't take anyone in intending to keep them beyond that, but it's a
waiver that the State does so that a youngster can complete the program.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: And during your-MS. GNAZZO: Generally they average around 15, 16 years old. We don't very
often have real young kids or very old kids.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: And as far as complaint from the neighbors, how many
complaints did you folks have.
MS. GNAZZO: Okay, Sister Roselani Enomoto's family has lived next door to us
up in Makawao for 21 years. She wrote a letter of support to the Planning
Department when we went in for our Special Use and Conditional Use
Permits for another piece of property. I don't have a copy of it here. What
she said in her letter is that she's had nothing but a positive relationship
with us, that our youngsters and staff have been respectful and
responsible, cooperative and polite, but there's never been a problem.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, just for clarification, there are several areas that they
have houses in. This particular one is the one over by Haliimaile on
Baldwin Avenue so they are--it's the old, just before the Maunaolu area.
So it's kind of isolated. The one Mr. Smith was talking about I think is
Pukalani. So there are different areas. Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
have in the program today?

How many boys do you

MS. GNAZZO: Eleven.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: How many are from Maui County?
MS. GNAZZO: I can't tell you today. We run about 35 percent from Maui which
is a higher percentage than youngsters in our population Maui kids versus
other kids. Our contracts for substance abuse are with the State of
Hawaii. There are only two facilities in the entire State. So we do get
referrals and Wayne did ask a question about where are our referrals
come from and I didn't get a chance to finish that. Primarily they come
through family guidance centers which is Child and Adolescent Mental
Health. Most of the youngsters who come in are dually diagnosed. So
they have substance abuse as the primary diagnosis, but they have a
learning disability or they have another behavioral health diagnosis as
well. So some of them may have gotten into, um, difficulties at school and
in the community because of those diagnoses and the impact that it has in
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their lives, but most of the referrals do come from that source. In our
residential programs overall, last year we had 555 youngsters, 441 were
from the County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. That's all, Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Further questions? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Gail, I just wanted to know what the
percentages are between an average of boys versus girls. Do you have
more boys in the program or more girls?
MS. GNAZZO: Well, our capacity to treat girls has been limited by the space that
we have. So we have girls that have not been able to be treated, but it
varies. It goes up and down. Sometimes there are more boys, sometimes
more girls. I think that girls are more apt to be referred to programs just in
general because everybody's more concerned about girls out on the
loose.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I guess what I'm trying to get at is the mix.
Because if you were to say look at Pukalani, for example, because that's a
separate facility for girls and then you have the two dormitories here in a
more isolated area, if there's a shift or if you're turning away more girls
than you are boys and you said you had 11 I guess boys in the program
right now, uh, I'd just be inclined to say to prevent the coed type problems,
if that's what you're getting, then perhaps to shift and make one facility all
one sex and-MS. GNAZZO: That is the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you're going to make-MS. GNAZZO: One is girls and one is boys. They're not gonna be coed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, what I'm saying is not this site, the actual
site where you have them make it all girls than at the site where you're
intending to expand and then shift the other one to boys.
MS. GNAZZO: We have no place for a second location. We're moving out of
Pukalani.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I see, I see what you're saying. So you're
moving out of the neighborhood that's been referred to.
MS. GNAZZO: Right. We wanted to move out of Pukalani for many years. A
neighborhood is not the place for a residential program for kids.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. GNAZZO: There's no space, there's no, urn, it's just not okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So this will not be an addition at all.
MS. GNAZZO: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's going to be a-MS. GNAZZO: This is a replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --replacement for your facility entirely?
MS. GNAZZO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Having said that, the neighboring areas with
Sister Roselani, are there any other neighbors in close proximity with
which you've had contact that have expressed any concern about what
your intent is?
MS. McCORD: On the contrary I've talked to a neighbor that has lived for many,
many years by the present substance abuse shelter and he has never
encountered any problems whatsoever.
And also speaking to the
consolidation and putting both facilities in the same place, uh, at the
present time Maui Youth & Family spends $85,000 a year on rent, and this
is in hopes that we can put that money towards programs rather than
towards rent. And also by having the two facilities next door to each other
we have staff that if there is a particular problem they can share in that
responsibility.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, that seems to work. I, there was just a-MS. GNAZZO: It's more cost effective and program effective to have them
together.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If I may, Mr. Chair, there was just a couple
more questions that I had in going through the file.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One, you're increasing the size of the water,
uh, actually the capacity. So you're going to a % inch is that ...
MS. GNAZZO: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So--and that will be sufficient flow to protect the
facility from any kind of potential fire-MS. GNAZZO: Yes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --or the children that are enclosed. Okay. And
then also there was a notation made that it was a critical wastewater
disposal area. So will what you're doing in terms of the cesspool area, will
that be sufficient capacity and is that acceptable to the agency which
wrote about the concerns?
MS. GNAZZO:
Uh-huh.
I think Marie can probably address that more
specifically from an engineering point of view.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, I'd appreciate that. Thank you.
MS. KIMMEY: Yeah, Jo Anne, I'm sorry I didn't go into that. I thought of it but-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Marie Kimmey.
MS. KIMMEY: --there's a lot of things to cover. I am Marie Kimmey again. The
new facility is getting a brand new septic system. So although they did do
one on the site not too long ago that was only for the two buildings
existing. The new system has been approved by the Health Department,
and this time around we will be getting ahead of the game, uh, approvals
on everything. Our engineer has done calculations on the water usage
and based on those calculations has recommended the % inch meter. I've
met with David Craddick on several occasions regarding this and he has
since, uh, we reached an agreement. He has instructed his engineers that
what we've come up with is acceptable, as I say it is unique, but the Water
Department sees value in what we're doing and is willing to give us this
help.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, great. Thank you. And Chairman
just ... the one final thing, and this is just from my view any way. I know
that staffing sometimes when you're separated by an area where you've
got some staff in Pukalani at present and then you have some staff over
there, do you think that you will be able to also work more efficiently in one
locale and maybe address some of the concerns that the members have
expressed to you today?
MS. GNAZZO: Of course. For example, currently we have, we have to feed kids
at two different locations. We intend to hire a professional cook so that we
can feed the kids at the three facilities, not have staff doing that
separately. I mean that's just one way of doing it. We also know that if
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the census goes up or down, we have staff that can be shifted. They're all
trained the same. They all have the same skill level, um, because we
have to have certain minimum coverage it gives us a little bit more
flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much. I appreciate it, Mr.
Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And just to get everybody back on track as far as the
program, what we're doing is we're discussing a Conditional Use Permit.
So what we're looking at is whether it is appropriate to allow this type of
facility in this area and whether it'll be detrimental to the community or not.
Okay. Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, obviously some of the representation seem
to indicate that no one's complained. I don't believe that. And the
reasons why I don't believe it may not be substantiated by what you said,
but you mentioned, number one, rent. So therefore it's better if you move
into an area where you can give more money towards program as a
reason. But second you said that you're trying to move out of residential
areas. If it is not a problem besides rent, has there been problems? I was
present for the one in Makawao. Not Makawao.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Pukalani.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think it was Makawao.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Pukalani.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Pukalani in which residents did raise some
concerns. So if we can have some honesty in this communication here
today, what kind of problems have you had in the residential area so that
you're trying to get out of it? Have you had problems?
MS. GNAZZO: What I said when I was asked-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And can you-MS. GNAZZO: --did we have complaints about this program, we haven't had any
complaints. We're talking about Makawao, number one. So we have had
no complaints in regard to our programming in Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. GNAZZO: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Where have you had problems?
MS. GNAZZO: We had complaints at Pukalani, many of which were not
substantiated. So there have been complaints. Anything that happened
in that neighborhood whether it had anything to do with us or not, there
was talk about girls, boys--they couldn't . . . our kids never went out
unsupervised, yet there were people who were talking about kids out in
the community, out at the school, out at the community center, they were
not our kids, but we've had complaints. We need more space. Where we
are now there is no yard, there is no ability to have any recreation. We
have had to take the kids away. So we're spending a lot of time on the
road. Those are the things that ... I don't wanna be in the neighborhood.
I don't wanna be in close proximity to people, other people's noise, other
people's kids, other people's drug use. You can smell marijuana from one
of our residences from the neighbors. I don't want our kids in that
situation. In Pukalani there were two drug dealers down the street. There
were somebody else who had 98 domestic violence calls in a year. The
police cars were going up and down that street all the time. Neighbor's
complain that it was us, but there were 98 complaints to one house. It
was not us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah-MS. GNAZZO: So I don't wanna be there with some of those negative influences
that are out in the community as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Right. Well, you know, there is this not in
my backyard syndrome and I think you're, and I think you're experiencing
it in the property that Mr. Arakawa wants to donate to you people. And
we've had calls, I know many of us have had calls as representatives
against this project. So I wanna tell you that there is that concern within
this community and as decision-makers we have to make that call. And
my particular concern is that if you're moving out from an area, and as you
stated certain areas, residential areas, and yet are building a clientele in
one area that you have so many that you're treating in one particular area
and now boys and girls, um, you know, the concern is well, what is that
amount of people that we should expect could be manageable and after
that it becomes a concern and then, you know, whatever good ties that
you've had with that neighborhood all of a sudden ballooned into a
problem. And this is a concern I think today whether we should condition
only certain amount of rooms there and have you look for other places is
my question.
MS. McCORD: First of all, one of the, the main reason we're moving out, trying
to move out of our Pukalani resident is not because of the problems and
not because of any difficulties other than the space element, that's one.
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There's no recreational area within this facility that we are presently
renting. And the other is economics, and the other is to consolidate our
resources. We have to run these kids to the dentist, to the doctor, to
school, etcetera, and that would make it a lot more cost-effective.
Yes, when you get teenagers no matter who they are or where they are,
there are, uh, there are problems and difficulties as Council Molina will be
attest to and, um, but we do have control. Probably better control than a
lot of neighborhoods have over larger groups of teenagers because of our
requirement of 1 adult per 5 kids. And there are always 2 whether there
are 5 or 10. Over 10 we go on up. And so I think these--and their
program is very structured so that these kids are not in the facility in the
morning time because they're off at school in our school and so there's,
uh ... all the time these kids are being supervised by trained supervisors.
So the main reason for moving out of the neighborhood is not necessarily
because of the problems. We had a fire in our Pukalani facility and the
neighbors immediately jumped or a neighbor jumped on the fact that the
girls were burning down the house. Well, it was lint in the vent system. It
was not something that the kids had started. But I think there are
NIMBY's who look at a facility like that in their neighborhood and look for
problems that don't necessarily exist.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So your answer has not been answered, my
question has not been answered. Do you think we should condition the
amount of people there?
MS. McCORD: I think that we should be allowed to have the 15 that are there.
We've had boys and girls in our emergency shelter since its inception and,
um, yes, I think you should.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What would be the maximum you think we-MS. McCORD: The maximum that we're asking for is 15 and, uh, in the new
facility. We have to send several of our children to the mainland because
there are not enough beds in the State of Hawaii to take care of children,
and I think this is a big step in the right direction to try and keep these kids
at home, to put 'em through a program and to rehabilitate them into a
family situation if possible.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And I don't mean to make this a prejudice
statement, but I think that the question that Mr. Carroll had and obviously
he was asking where a lot of the kids are coming from and we can't help if
a family from Honolulu can afford it and wants to send their kid to Maui to
the facility here, but at the same time I would hope that Maui County isn't
carrying the brunt of having to treat, you know, this group of concerned
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young children that have addictive personalities or whatever, and probably
because of the money that you get you cannot refuse someone can you?
MS. GNAZZO: Our contracts with the Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. GNAZZO: --and Child and Adolescent Mental Health don't allow us to
discriminate on any basis.
Let me also address the fact that there are no--there are three substance
abuse counselors in the schools in Maui County. There are two at
Baldwin High and one at Lahaina Intermediate. The rest of the schools
have no substance abuse counselors. Maui kids are not being identified
for treatment. They're not being referred to the program in as large
numbers as I believe they should be. I think there are probably 1,700 kids
in Maui County today who need treatment. They're not being referred to
the program because nobody's out there identifying them.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And I guess Mr. Chairman my concern is
I'm glad you're there, but then when you become a problem, then you're
solving the problem. And so as much as I think we need this because
we've heard the stories about drug, we just read this morning's newspaper
about all the abuse cases in Maui County that I'm not proud of, especially
in Kihei that I'm not proud of, and yet I guess we've got to look for more
facilities in other areas rather than create, start creating the problems. So,
Mr. Chairman, I don't know if we want to condition this, but I would hope
that as we look at this application that we would place some numbers as a
maximum.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If you're asking me, Mr. Nishiki, the State departments that
administer these programs are very much aware of what the capacities of
the programs are, and they're the experts in the field. I would not
presume that I know more, or that I have better ability to be able to
analyze what the experts in the field are doing. So I wouldn't condition, I
personally would not be willing to condition on the basis on the fact that,
um, the people that are administering the programs from the State have
specific requirements that they have of these facilities to license.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, my question is I'm not making that decision,
Mr. Arakawa. I'm asking this Committee to perhaps ask the State if there
is a number that we should condition such a facility before it becomes a
problem.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And each one is being licensed.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, my question is can-CHAIR ARAKAWA: So the governing agencies-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we ask the State if they have some concern and
if they, if a number is acceptable?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Let's ask Gail. In going through the licensing process, is
there a number that the State requires or the State establishes for the
licensing of these facilities?
MS. GNAZZO: They've established the license for Ho'omaka Hou I at 18. The
Department of Human Services has licensed our capacity at the
emergency shelter at 10. The State hospital's division has licensed our
facility in Pukalani at 8 although we've been maintaining much lower than
that. Our facility in Lahaina is licensed for 8.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So understanding that that means that how many
can be ... how many beds can be put there? I guess my question is this,
if you are licensed for that amount, does that mean that you cannot
expand and get more should you provide bed space and facility?
MS. GNAZZO: You would have to go back in and request a re-licensing, but that
is contingent on your physical capacity. So if they said 18, it's not likely
that I would see them expanding it beyond the 18 because they're looking
at what our capacity is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, what we are doing today is basically giving
you zoning, right?
MS. GNAZZO: Right.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Conditional use.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. GNAZZO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So if that ... is that a condition is my question of, I
don't know, our Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Brian you wanna answer it?
MR. MOTO: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. Could you restate the question, please.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne is asking, if I'm correct ... oh, actually Wayne why
don't you ask him the question so it's more specific.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Yeah, Brian, the question is that they
are now coming in for a Conditional Permit and they're saying that they
wanna add so many more structures here and so I guess we're gonna say
aye or nay. The question is I don't know if this Conditional Use is based
on the amount of area that now Maui Youth & Family Services are allowed
to use. And once we give this Conditional Use Permit, can they, without
coming back to us, expand their facilities and add more bed space?
(pause)
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, uh, in response to the question, the application for
the Conditional Permit is limited to the representations made by the
applicant in pursuing the permit and that would include the thing such as
the site plan, the location of the proposed buildings and their approximate
size. Any significant alterations from those plans would require an
amendment of the Conditional Permit or a new one.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, because I can remember in the minutes
and this was stated by the representatives here that they indeed did
expand, you know, this facility and Bernice Lu was saying something
about, you know, just as we're having to direct our kids, we shouldn't be
breaking the laws also-MS. GNAZZO: May I respond to that. We didn't increase bed capacity. We
increased recreational space and meeting space. And so it was to provide
a more quality program to the kids. It wasn't, it wasn't bed capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, no. What she said was that we should go and
get the necessary permits prior to doing it is what she said. That was her
statement. I don't mis ... wish to misrepresent what she said and that is
in fact wasn't it?
MS. GNAZZO: Right. But you said that we were doing increasing bed capacity
which we were not.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So any way-CHAIR ARAKAWA: To answer your question-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --your answer was no.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: The answer was no or ... that's what I understand Corp.
Counsel to say. The conditions that are in the Conditional Use Permit, if
they are altered any significant way, it has to come back for review.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Correct, Brian?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, you are correct.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any further questions? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just couple of follow-ups on
some earlier questions and I appreciate you bearing with us. I think it's
clear that when we're dealing with a facility like this, which is extremely
necessary but it's also extremely scary for people who live in the area
that's gonna be affected by these houses, so you can understand why we
have this concern and I think I can speak safely for all of us in having that
concern ... although I won't speak for everyone, I'll speak for myself.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: (chuckled) Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You made a comment to Mr.
Kawano about the age group and you said 12 to 17 and I think under
Conclusions of Law on Page 2 of your, of the docket it says, actually the
emergency shelter is for ages 10 through 17, yeah.
MS. GNAZZO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So my concern with that is if you're gonna have kids
together in the rooms, do you put a 10 year old with a 17 year old?
MS. GNAZZO: No, we wouldn't.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So you folks have internal policies that kind of
control that and I know that's-MS. GNAZZO: Yes. Yes. Uh-huh. And-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --out, overreaching what our discussion is today but
it just-MS. GNAZZO: Our ten year olds go into foster homes. They're not in the group
facility.
So we are very mindful of age differences and age
appropriateness.
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So you folks have written policies that

The other question was, urn, you folks are one of two programs in the
entire State regarding Residential Substance Abuse Treatment, is that
correct?
MS. GNAZZO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And I again I'm just referring to the Planning
Commission minutes and Mr. Carroll brought forward that question about
the contract does not allow you folks to discriminate regarding servicing
Maui County kids.
MS. GNAZZO: And we would take every Maui kid that got referred. It's a lack of
referrals. It's not a lack of numbers in the community, but if no one's out
there identifying kids in need of treatment, unless there's some
extenuating circumstance, some condition that would preclude them from
being in our program, we would take every Maui kid that got referred.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Now you mentioned just a moment ago that 1,700
kids ... where did you get that number 1,700 kids not being serviced? Is
that a number ... where did you get that number from?
MS. GNAZZO: I just pulled it out of the air. Actually there is a study that was
done-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: (chuckled) Don't just say that, please, because that
would kind-MS. GNAZZO: --by Department of Education in the Alcohol-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --of take away your creditability.
MS. GNAZZO: --the Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division in the Department of
Education and those are only kids who are in school based on the study
that they did last Fall.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So that's the number that they came up with and
you just using that number?
MS. GNAZZO: Yes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. (chuckled) You got me nervous--
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MS. GNAZZO: Can't joke. Can't joke. Sorry. I don't normally.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, you can, but this is very serious.
MS. GNAZZO: My mother always criticizes me that I'm too serious. And she
said can't you through a joke and the one time I try it-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Gail.
(laughter by the audience and Committee)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain, you have any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, Mr. Chair. Just one more.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Uh, well, actually I think Ms. Johnson asked the
question regarding the sewer. Because there were requests for things
being turned in, I believe it was answered that those things were turned in
and approved.
So . . . the last question is not for you folks. It's for the Planning
Department, Mr. Chair, so I'll wait until the time is appropriate for that.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead, ask the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. This is the first request for this
application. Do we normally go through a process of 1, 5, 10 year break
down or, or is ... can you kind of give me a clarification on that-MS. HIGA: This is the first-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --Ms. Higa.
MS. HIGA: --Conditional Use Permit request, but it has had a State Special Use
Permit for the past 10 years ... more than 10 years, sorry. Maybe I think
20 years, yeah? It's had a State Special Use Permit, but because of the
Corporation Counsel's opinion in June of 19 (change of tape) we're
requiring Conditional Use Permits for those uses that were approved
under the State Special Use Permit only. So this is just the first for the
Council to review under the Conditional Use Permit.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Any further questions?
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: What's the Chair's recommendation?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: The Chair recommends approval of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So move.
VICE CHAIR KAWANO: Second.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Mr. Nishiki, seconded by Mr. Kawano.
Any discussion? All those in favor of approving the Conditional Use
Permit as stated say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE. (ex. RH)
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Opposed? Motion carried.

VOTE:

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmember Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Hokama.

FIRST READING of bill, as revised.

CHAIR ARAKAWA: We're gonna take a 5 minute recess.
MS. McCORD: Thank you very much.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:09 p.m.
3:19 p.m.
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BED AND BREAKFAST OPERATIONS (8&8 AND
TRANSIENT VACA TlON RENTALS IN AGRICULTURE, RURAL,
AND
HISTORIC
ZONING
DISTRICTS)
(C.C. No. 97-17)

19

LAND-USE DEFINITIONS (INCLUDING THOSE RELA TlNG
TO 8&8 AND OTHER TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS IN
AGRICUL TURE
AND
RURAL
ZONING
DISTRICTS)
(C.C. No. 01-63)

CHAIR ARAKAWA: I am going to reconvene the Land Use Committee meeting.
(gavel) At this time we have two more people that want to testify. DeGray
Vanderbilt followed by Tanna Swanson. State your name for the record
DeGray.

(pause while Mr. Vanderbilt walks to the podium)

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Land Use
Committee. I just wanted to testify-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My name is?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: My name is DeGray.
MR. VANDERBILT: I just wanted to testify that my name is DeGray Vanderbilt,
resident of Molokai. And I wanted to testify on this whole thing about bed
and breakfasts and other transient vacation rentals, which I assume are
single family homes where the owner doesn't live there and he has it
either registered with a realtor, whatever, for short-term hotel-type use.
And I wanna speak to this in relation to the Maui County general plan and
the community plans, and try to understand at least how you could even
consider passing laws that aren't consistent with either the provisions of
the Maui County general plan which was adopted into law, and the
Molokai Community Plan, the Paia Community Plan and other seven
community plans which were also adopted into law.
It's very clear in the general plan, very clear in most community plans that
they wanna control visitor industry development into those areas that are
designated in the community plans, but for some reason because of lack
of enforcement, I think that's probably the main reason these things have
proliferated just out of control. There was an article saying that they
estimate there's 8,000 illegal short-term vacation rentals in Maui County.
Now all of a sudden the Council is looking at potential tax revenues. Well,
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look at the potential compromising of the community plans too. That has a
value. And I think that we have one coming up. You're gonna get a
Conditional Use Permit application coming up from our Molokai Planning
Commission with no recommendation, a single family resident where the
owner doesn't live there, he's gonna be asking for short-term vacation
rental on two dwellings. And it's, I'm not for or against that that much, but
it's just how is this gonna open the door for a lot of other people.
And I know in the Paia Community Plan for instance, they say prohibit
hotel-resort development within the region. They also say limit visitor
accommodations to owner-occupied bed and breakfasts and keep them
out of the shoreline areas. There's other community plans that have very
similar situations. Our Molokai Community Plan says to keep vacation
rentals where they're noted in the community plan it says specifically in
some areas not to allow Conditional and Special Use Permits.
If you move onto the general plan, it's very clear. One of the main, one of
the five themes in the general plan is to protect Maui shoreline and limit
visitor industry growth. And in that visitor industry growth it says, there's a
section in the general plan that's specific to the visitor industry. And in
that there's statements like to control the development of the visitor
industry so that it does not infringe upon the traditional, social, economic
and environmental values of the community.
Limit visitor industry
development to those areas identified in the appropriate community plans
into the development of projects within those areas which are in
conformance with the goals and objectives of those plans. And I know in
our Molokai Community Plan, you know, they've taken general statements
like that and refined them, and I think other community plans have too.
It says ensure that visitor industry facility shall not disrupt agriculture and
social pursuits and will not allow to negatively impact the County's natural
and cultural resources. And one of the main one's is restrict the transient
rental use of single family housing in residential zones from visitor industry
use short-term rentals.
This was brought up to the, our Planning Department. In the Planning
Department staff report, which you'll probably get a copy, says restrict
doesn't mean prohibit. Well, the obvious question within, when our
Molokai Community Plan comes up on the east end, maybe the Planning
Department should advise our people to say prohibit short-term vacation
rentals on the east end of Molokai.
Would they still issue a
recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit? I asked Mr. Min at a
Planning Commission meeting, I said have you ever recommended denial
of a Conditional Use or Special Use Permit for a vacation rental in Maui
County? And he said he couldn't recall. Now, maybe he has and that was
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just catching him off guard on Molokai, but that's kind of scary. And it
goes on and on.
And there was a, that January 14th, 2001, Maui News article talks about, I
think it was Brian Miskae saying he estimates about 8,000 single family.
And I guess I'm not against some single family dwellings bed and
breakfast just where you have control. But in the one on Molokai the
Planning Department and the tax people on ... from Maui County wrote a
letter to our Planning Commission say oh, this stuff doesn't increase your
property taxes. Well, that's a lot of baloney. What it does it gives more
income stream to property. You have realtors out there saying go ahead,
you can rent the unit behind as a vacation rental, you can do this, and
therefore they can sell it for more or somebody that couldn't afford 300 or
$400,000 lot now can afford it because they can rent out the ohana unit.
And in some areas like, uh, maybe there's places for this, but when people
fight hard to buy a home, uh, you know, they wanna a little protection on
that area. And it would be sad to just pass these laws without being
consistent with the community plan 'cause as a last statement I'll say that
the general plan it has one final statement that's on the last page of the
general plan. It says all County law shall be consistent with the intent of
the general plan. And I read a few of the things that would say that
short-term vacation rentals in ag and rural residential areas or in other
residential areas, uh, would not be legal. So I it's just hard, I don't
understand the process of how you could consider passing the law without
first amending the general plan and amending each of the community
plans and maybe I just haven't studied this thing close enough, but I just
thought I'd share that stuff with you. And I was a member of the Molokai
Citizens Advisory Committee that did review our current community plan
that's before you. So thank you for the opportunity.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you DeGray.
thank you. Tanna.

Any questions for DeGray?

If not,

(pause while Ms. Swanson walks to the podium)
MS. SWANSON: Good afternoon, Council. My name is Tanna Swanson. I own
and operate The Guest House bed and breakfast Lahaina side, licensed.
And first off I wanna commend the Council in the past for working hard in
establishing the bed and breakfast law over the past years. I mean we
actually have a law in place at this point. There are certain issues that
have come up ... too few to mention here. But right at this point there's
rumors about changing and amending and doing a lot of things with the
B&B law, and as a small group on the west side, still pretty much
organized, we just wanted you guys to know that we would like to be
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inclusive and help in any way we can to establish and enforce the existing
laws. Maybe they do need some amendment here and there.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: (chuckled)
MS. SWANSON:
And I don't have to go into the basic problems of
nonconformance and things like this that we haven't had. So we're just
here saying that yes, the association is alive and well even though we're
not spoken of too much and that we would like to work with you guys in
the future.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you. Any questions for Tanna?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know it was a bit disappointing for myself
personally when you came in as a group to lobby us to legitimatize
yourselves and many of you represented that you would indeed come in
and legitimatize yourself and that has not happened. It's been dismal. It's
bee disappointing. It's been embarrassing for me after hearing a group of
people come in here saying that you would do it. Why, if you're still
organized, have you not had ... or why have we not had legitimacy in all
you people coming in?
MS. SWANSON: That is the question. We have a law in place and who's
enforcing it? It's not like you guys don't know we're out there. We have
open advertising on the internet in your papers. We have an association
that will not take anything but licensed B&Bs. Why is it not working? And
this is the main issue of we appeared today. Obviously there is a flaw
somewhere; obviously there's a hidden agenda with some of the property
owners. But we understand there's problems. We question ourselves
with the people that won't come out. If there's something on our side that
we could do for you to help, let us know. We wanna work with it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This may sound loaded, but it's not. What is your,
what is your suggestion to us that we should do? Do you have a
suggestion as a group today to offer us?
MS. SWANSON: Enforcement. Numerous people have actually compiled lists
and submitted them. That's no secret anymore. I'm working with the
Planning Department now with Will Spence and Steph. We're trying to
make the process itself simpler and easier to understand thinking maybe
that's a fear. That it's so cumbersome right now that the people just don't
understand it. But I think for the main part it's a lackadaisical attitude on

Page 40

- ·LU 04130101

the homeowners that are doing B&B or short-term rental that they have no
fear of anyone coming in and shutting them down and they have not just
bothered to follow through the process.
Now there's some legitimate understandings. There's some property
owners that cannot conform. Maybe their lot size doesn't meet the
requirements. Maybe there is no way they can figure on-site parking.
Those are legitimate concerns. And no one wants to say well, gee, you've
done this for eight years, but all of a sudden, you know, even though you
never had a complaint you're not gonna be able to do this anymore. You
know this could cost them their livelihood. This could cost them their
home. So it's a very touchy kind of thing with us involved. But for the
most part, you know, it's lack of enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Final question. B&B is one thing. There are
homes being, ohana homes being rented as vacation rentals short term.
This obviously is causing a crunch to many of us that live here cannot
afford to buy a home and we seen because of these ohana homes now
being used as vacation rentals cause rents to go up. Do you people have
a position on this?
MS. SWANSON:
breakfast--

I can speak for myself.

When we made the bed and

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your association has no position?
MS. SWANSON: Actually we do. We made a bed and breakfast law and that
law specifically states that ohanas would not be used. The County went
ahead and passed a few ohanas. So you can't say that it's a problem with
the law. This Council here or I guess the past Council ended up passing
something of the ohana's in to the bed and breakfast thing which we were
shocked. No one said anything more about it. So I don't know where the
problem lies. Were there some confusion? I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So your position is in regards to ohana?
MS. SWANSON: That ohana should not be bed and breakfasts.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It should be long tem.
MS. SWANSON: It should be long term.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. SWANSON: Any other questions?
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Any further questions? If not, thank you, Tanna.
Council members ... well, first of all, is there any body else that wants to
testify before we start? Go ahead state your name and then fill out the
form later.
(pause while Mr. Pounds walks to the podium)
MR. POUNDS: I wasn't gonna testify. My name is Rick Pounds. I happen-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Speak into the mike.
MR. POUNDS: Oh, thank you. Most of you have seen me before. I have a
Conditional Use Permit and a State Permit for my home in Maui Meadows,
which has a vacation rental and a bed and breakfast combined. It was
passed. We went through incredible, incredible things to get that. Alan,
you're aware of what happened, Mr. Carroll you're aware of what
happened, Mr. Kawano you're aware--everybody's aware because most of
the people here had passed us. I went through a lawsuit. It cost me
$25,000 to do this. I went through the changes in my insurance which
costs me an additional $3,000 per year. I also went through a tax change
where I lost my tax status as far as having any-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Homeowner's exemption.
MR. POUNDS: Excuse me? Exemption. Thank you very much. And I was here
from the very, very first day. Wayne I was here from the beginning. You
even said in certain times, Rick, I'm impressed with what you've done, and
the hardest thing for me is coming in to these meetings again and bringing
something back up again because I've got my permit until next year. I'm
gonna come in front you guys again and, you know, this is not a very good
thing for my wife and I when we are legally permitted. And we get a call
from the Planning Enforcement Commission that we're running a B&B
illegally. Now how would you feel to get up in the morning and had a call
at 8:30 in the morning saying what are you doing with your B&B? Are you
licensed? Can't the County understand that we are licensed. It's on my
web page that we have a permit number. And yes, I do believe that in the
proper circumstances that a bed and breakfast and an ohana are
compatible because they have a long term and short term together really
is in compatible in my opinion. There's two of 'em in the island right now.
We came forward. You know how many people are out there right now
renting their garages out for $35? Do you know how many people are out
there right now that are charging taxes to our visitors? And guess where
the taxes are going? In their pockets. How do I compete with somebody
at $35 a night? My occupancy rate has dropped since the passing of the
laws. It's dropped, Wayne. It's not increased. I'm not doing better. I
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don't have no way of paying this $25,000 back to me for the lawsuit and
everything else that I got involved with. This is where we are in Maui
County. The people who come forward and even the people in our own
association are trying to say get rid of your vacation rental and your
ohana. That's not fair. I supported you. I supported everything that came
into the residential area when that was brought forward. I supported
everything there. And then when we were to be supported for the ag and
rural, everybody disappeared. Everybody said hey, I'm not going through
what you did Rick Pounds. That's why Wayne, that is why people are not
coming forward because there's somebody in the background that bed
and breakfast, drugs--what's going on here? This is absolutely incredible
to me. And somebody can just come in and go hey, you know what's
wrong with our whole society? It's those damn bed and breakfast. I'm
sorry. I get upset. It's been a very emotional six years for me operating
this place and you can call anyone of my people that stay with us that are
guests and you can call anyone of them and ask them about Rick
Pounds, Maui Meadows. You can go to everyone of my neighbors,
Wayne. Anyone of them. You go any day you want and you ask them
about Rick Pounds and Dale Pounds. I can't answer and speak for
everybody on the island. I can't speak for somebody who walks in to a
garage at $35 a night and then finally ends up calling me and going hey,
what's going on here? They're not helping my business. I'm here to say
what can we do to even everything out. You wanna open the floodgates?
That's your prerogative. I went through a lot to get what I, to earn the right
to run a bed and breakfast in the Maui County. That's what I went
through. I'm not about to take Round 7 again for another six, seven years.
I'm always wondering who's gonna come and shut me down and who's
gonna complain about what I'm doing. I think my three minutes were up.
Is that correct, Alan?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Fairly close.
MR. POUNDS: But that's the way I feel, okay. It's cost me more money. It's
cost me aggravation. It's cost my wife and I tremendous emotional stress.
Tremendous. To come here is not good for me, okay. So I wanna thank
you all for what you've done, and I wanna thank you all for what you're
gonna do because I know that whatever you're gonna do is gonna be a
good decision. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, any questions for Rick? Rick wait on. Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Yes, Rick, thanks for coming.
I really
appreciate it. I was speaking last week with one of the individuals who
also, we were trying to figure out why more people aren't coming forward
and we heard I think it was maybe a couple months ago before we started
budget that it is as you attest to really expensive. It's a very laborious
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process and some how the impression I'm getting is that everybody
thought well, you're gonna get a permit and there'd be let's say a less,
less painful process than what you've gone through. That doesn't seem to
be happening and people are really afraid to come forward for many of the
reasons mentioned. Having said that, one of the other things that came
out of this conversation was that we have an organization which is
stepping forward and offering to help the County enforce. Now we don't
obviously have the personnel to go out and enforce. It's just based on
complaints many times. Would you be willing to assist the County to help
maybe even legitimize some of these bed and breakfast that are
"questionable"? Make them abide by your regulations which you could
help draft and then have that be approved by this body or in cooperation
with the Planning Department, whatever entity is there, and help to
legitimize these businesses if they are off on the wrong foot, to help do
that. Would you be willing to just draft some ground rules and then require
that these people actually be members of your association so that you can
follow-up on it. Does that sound like something that's workable?
MR. POUNDS: Since you've asked that I would be willing to do anything it would
take to help make things right here in Maui County. I'd be willing to do
anything. See, what really upsets me is to see businesses that are being
operated out of homes and they're very legitimate businesses, they're not
hurting anybody, they're not hurting our neighbors. However, when
they're operating their business out of their home, do they lose their
exemption? Do they lose that kind of money that's important to anybody?
This isn't, you know, my bed and breakfast is not my hobby. It's not my
hobby. It's my business. It's what I came here and came to all of you to
do. And I'd be willing to do anything it would take to help to put the set
ground rules and to make some changes that need to be changed, but
you know I get to a point where you sit here and you go what's going on?
I mean things are happen all around us and--Wayne there is, there is a
lack ... I mean just anybody try it one day. Put your, put something on
the market to be rented and see how many calls you get. Fifty, 60, 70,
100--1 don't know. That is a major problem. I'm not part of the problem in
that whole thing. I'm the solution. I'm legitimate. The people who are the
problem are the 5, 6,000 areas where there are vacation rentals. Where
there are, not timeshares. There's condos that are disputes between
vacation rentals and permanency. These are the problems. We're not the
problems. If you have 800 bed and breakfast here, you change them into
long term that's not gonna be a solution to the problems. What's gonna
be a solution is to say look, you have a certain amount of time that you
can come forward to the County, make an announcement in the paper. I
don't know. You can come forward to the County, legitimatize yourself,
make it easier on you guys. You wanna see 500 people a year coming
through here and the same testimony, you wanna see that? You wanna
see people going I'm gonna spend my tax money on having the County
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Council go through all these bed and breakfasts permits? There's gotta
be something simple through the Planning Department that can be done
and through--yeah, I'd be willing to help. That's all I have to say-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I appreciate that because I think that's kind
of what we're looking towards because obviously if there are indeed all
these businesses out there, there needs to be a mechanism where we can
regulate it where complaints can be addressed, some kind of avenue
where we can legitimize these businesses and I appreciate that. And
we're gonna look to you for help I'm sure.
MR. POUNDS: I appreciate all of you. I really do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. POUNDS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Rick. Rick. Rick. Sign your form. Thank you
very much.
. .. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..

CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Council members, in discussing Land Use 13 and
Land Use 19, I'm gonna sort of for this part of the discussion merge the
two because we need to have a discussion about that and then later on
we're gonna try and split 'em up again, okay. Now there gonna be several
things that we're gonna have to really seriously consider. We do have a
bed and breakfast ordinance that is limited in scope of what it does. I
think the Council needs to come to a very serious discussion and decision
as to whether or not we want to allow these type of businesses to exist in
the County and what our action is gonna be. The decision will be based
on whether we want to legitimize businesses, we want to allow these
operations. We've heard that, um, we also are removing some units out of
the ability to be rented long term. And I think it's a policy decision we all
need to really iron out as to whether or not we want to allow units to
become short term rentals or maintain them only as long term rentals.
And that's first and primary. Because if we choose not to allow short-term
rentals, then all the other discussions as far as trying to get all the
categories established and trying to see what we can do with the entire
industry is moot. Am I clear on that? Okay. So from a public-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Wayne.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's not that simple, Alan. And I don't think that
that statement best represents what really we're faced with. A policy
decision on legitimizing or not legitimizing. I think certain areas may not
want it as brought up by DeGray and I think we need to be sensitive to
those areas. If in Haiku there is a comment there then, you know, we may
have to amend community plans or general plans. And if in Molokai there
is a statement made, these are made by the citizens of that region-CHAIR ARAKAWA: That's correct, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I think that and ...
CHAIR ARAKAWA: What we're gonna be doing, what we're gonna be doing in
just a few minutes, is we're gonna have the department go over some of
the policies and we're gonna be looking at some of the problems that we
have been working with the ag and rural as far as having to follow State
rules. And we're gonna try and put as much information on the floor as
possible to have a serious discussion about it. There are community plan
areas where in Hana for instance they specifically state they do not want
these types of operations, and there are other areas within the community
plan and the planning system that are mentioned in degrees. So as a
policy I think we're gonna need to be able to understand what the
community has required within the community plan process. And once we
understand that, whether or not we are going to try and set a overall
policy, policies depending on the areas and we have to determine where
we want to go with this once we understand what is there that we need to
deal with. Am I making this a little bit clearer, Wayne? Okay, Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have a few questions for the
Planning Department.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: First of all I'm just trying to explain this. I'm gonna have
Planning Department explain some of the concerns we have and what we
have to deal with, Dain, maybe that'll answer your questions prior or-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Well, my question, Mr. Chairman, and thank
you for allowing me a moment to address this issue. Some of the
statements made by one of the testifiers in particular does, does concern
me and Wayne has brought it up as well and so I just wanted to get some
clarification from the Planning Department before they get into their
presentation if that's okay with you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: On?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Regarding Chapter 19.64 and its consistency with
the general plan and community plans.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, that's part of what we're gonna be discussing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So is that appropriate for me to ask that question
now? Because it seems like-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't we-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: From what I'm listening to it seems like that this law
or this ordinance was passed and it's inconsistent with what the general
plans-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Why don't we let Planning Department explain some of that
then that may answer your question.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. So Director Min and John Summers. If you would
address some of the community plan, what is in there that addresses
these items as well as the general policy. At this point because we do
have a bed and breakfast, how would the departments reviewing this, the
policy versus what the community plans are saying.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the County Council and
the public.
I'll get right to Councilman Kane's question about the
consistency of Maui County Code Chapter 19.64 which is the ordinance
that established a permitting procedure for bed and breakfast homes, and
a consistency of that ordinance with the Paia-Haiku and Hana Community
Plans.
It's important to note that bed and breakfasts as they are defined in 19.64
it's a pretty narrow definition in the sense that we're talking about single
family dwelling units where an owner-proprietor or lessee-proprietor
resides within the dwelling, okay. So it's much different than transient
vacation rentals, much narrower in terms of what can be done.
The community plans in Hana and Paia-Haiku do have policies
expressingly limiting transient vacation rentals within those community
plan regions. However, the community plan policies as they relate to bed
and breakfast which again are quite different, do not seem to conflict with
MCC 19.64.
And let me read you the policy statements that deal with this type of use.
If we look at Page 11 in the Paia-Haiku Community Plan ... again the way
these community plans are constructed we have a section that deals with
the problems in each region and then we have policies and objectives that
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relate to different types of issues. For instance land use or housing, or our
governmental affairs. In the section, in section B on Page 11 of the major
problems and opportunities in the region, there is a statement under
housing that says the housing shortage is exacerbated by the conversion
of residential dwellings to short-term rentals which in turn negatively affect
the character of traditional neighbors in the region.
If, if you proceed to look at Page 17 of that community plan policy number
13, and here's the key.
It says limit visitor accommodations to
owner-occupied bed and breakfast establishments that are residential in
both scale and character. Any proposed bed and breakfast should not be
situated near the shoreline so as to avoid the proliferation of this use and
subsequent changes in the character of the region's coast. And I think the
thing here is this statement would indicate a consistency with 19.64, urn,
as it relates to bed and breakfast homes. The second sentence there
would simply be a policy statement that decision makers should use when
evaluating these types of uses when they are located along the shoreline
in this community plan region.
Again, on Page 18, policy number 4, there is a statement in the Haiku
Community Plan that states, establish and enforce regulations for bed and
breakfast establishments conducted by owner-occupants within single
family residential dwellings. So again here it does underscore the
consistency with 19.64, but again it's talking about it as it relates to a bed
and breakfast home.
In the community plan, the Hana Community Plan ... there also some
policies that expressly limit transient vacation rentals in this region. On
Page 12 of the community plan under goals for land use, there's a
statement at the bottom of the page, objective number 9, that says
discourage transient rental accommodations uses outside of the Hana
urban area. So the key is again we're talking about transient vacation
rentals rather than B&Bs. So there doesn't seem to be any inconsistency
with 19.64 with respect to the Hana Community Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: John, you pretty much explained that. Can I have Mr. Kane
ask his question? Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And so just to follow-up because
another statement was made by one of the testifiers regarding the
previous Council passing bed and breakfasts regarding ohanas and so
that, there's, there lies another perceived inconsistency if you can just
provide clarity to that statement.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: I think what we'll do instead is John perhaps if you guys can
go over the bed and breakfast ordinance as is, as it was passed, that will
give you the scope of what the bed and breakfast actually is. Anything
that is not within that ordinance is outside of the scope.
MR. SUMMERS: Okay-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go over the bed and breakfasts.
MR. SUMMERS: The bed and breakfast ordinance essentially establishes a
permit procedure within the urban districts, and there are three types of
bed and breakfasts that are established--a Type I, Type II and Type
1I1--within the residential districts. The major difference between each type
is the number of rooms that are used for rental purposes as well as the lot
size, um, where the subject use is occurring. A Type I permit would
involve 1 or 2 bedrooms that's used for short-term rental and it would be
reviewed by the Planning Director. A Type II bed and breakfast would
involve 3 to 4 bedrooms on lots of at least 7,500 square feet and that
would be approved by the Planning Commission following a public
hearing. Bed and breakfast with 5 to 6 rooms would involve the County
Council's review and it's limited to lots of at least 10,000 square feet.
Again the definition of a bed and breakfast home per that ordinance is a
use in which overnight accommodations are provided to guests for
compensations for periods of less than 30 days in a detached single family
dwelling unit occupied by the owner-proprietor or lessee-proprietor. It
further defines some of the unique characteristics of this dwelling. The
home shall include bedrooms, one kitchen and living areas used by the
family occupying the home and shall include no more than 6 bedrooms for
short-term rental as specified within the zoning district provisions of this
title.
This ordinance really does not address bed and breakfast or transient
vacation rentals in agricultural or rural districts. And there's a whole
different set of procedures that will apply to this type of use within ag and
rural areas.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain, so you understand what the bed and breakfast rule is
at this pOint? Now, what John is going to go into right now is the process
in which we have to work because the rural and ag areas have a State
control component that is, that needs to be recognized. So I'm gonna
have John go in and explain what those restrictions are and why the
requirements would have to be a little bit different than what the bed and
breakfast ordinance was for residential. John, go ahead.
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MR. SUMMERS: Okay, so it's important to distinguish between transient
vacation rentals, which essentially involve a use of a dwelling or lodging
unit for period of less 180 days, versus this bed and breakfast definition.
Now the current situation in agricultural and rural areas is that two permits
are required, okay. Remember we have this dual jurisdiction between the
State and the County's with respect to the management of agricultural and
rural areas.
The first permit, the State Land Use Special Use Permit is required
pursuant to HRS 205 and Chapter 15 of the Land Use Commissions
Rules. A Conditional Permit pursuant to Chapter 19.40 is required per
County zoning requirements because this use is ... neither use, the B&B
use nor the transient vacation use is listed in the agricultural or rural
zoning districts, a Conditional Use Permit is required.
Now in terms of the two permits, the major difference is the approval and
denial procedure. The State permit requires the approval of the Planning
Commission if the use is occurring on a lot equal to or less than 15 acres,
and the County Conditional Permit, if the lot is greater than 15 acres it
would also require the approval of the State Land Use Commission. If on
the Conditional Permit the final review authority is the County Council.
Notification requirements are slightly different. The Conditional Permit
requires a 500 foot notification from surrounding property owners
while--excuse me--from the parcel, 500 feet from the parcel whereas the
State Land Use Commission Special Use Permit is a 500--excuse me--is
limited to adjacent landowners. So there is a difference in the notification
requirements. The decision-making criteria also slightly different because
the State permit through the Land Use Commission Rules has five criteria
that need to be met whereas the County Conditional Permit requires the
applicant to justify the use.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you know, for all of us here today, it
would've been and we should ask Planning Department, you know, we got
no working document as far as the ordinance or-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne, today what we're gonna do-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --it would be so much nicer if--
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne. What we're gonna do today is we're gonna just go
through an explanation. We're not asking for any kind of decisions. We're
gonna put everything together in a packet so you can see all of these rules
and regulations, but I first wanted the Planning Department to explain
some of these.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: So you will get these regulations and requirements written.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, the reason is that it's so much easier. The
other thing I think that maybe Dain wanted to ask that I know that was
made clear to us today is what is the Administration currently doing
because we've heard that people are calling up people right now. Rick
said people are calling him up. You know if this is happening, why? And
is it causing more people to run and hide?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, Wayne, first I'm gonna let John finish the areas that
he's in so we can get the explanations. Then after that we may get into
the discussion you're talking about. John why don't you complete.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So essentially at this point in time
in the agricultural and rural zoning districts, which we're discussing at this
point, B&Bs as well as transient vacation rentals will require a County
Conditional Permit and a State Land Use Permit. The State Land Use
Special Use Permit is a given pursuant to HRS 205. The State essentially
the authority for that permit is set forth in that State law and it would take
an act of the State Legislature to amend the law to eliminate the
requirement for that particular permit. The Conditional Permit, um, can be
addressed by adding transient vacation rentals and/or bed and breakfast
as a use within the agricultural or rural zoning districts.
So essentially looking at sort of the options that one could do with respect
to permitting of these uses, uh, obviously the existing system can be
maintained. And a State Special Use Permit and a Conditional Permit
would both continue to be required. You could eliminate the requirement
for a Conditional Permit and limit the review to that of the State Special
Use Permit by the Planning Commissions, or you could utilize the State
Special Use Permit procedure and the B&B permit . . . that type of
procedure. One of the issues that would result from that is you'd have
different notification requirements, different procedures that would be
archaic to administer that type of approach.
In terms of the community plans, again, the Hana and Paia-Haiku
Community Plans do have policies that expressly limit transient vacation
rentals. The other community plans do not have any direct policies that
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relate to these types of uses. They do have a provision. There is some
policy statement in the other community plans that does talk about limiting
(change of tape) to agriculture types of uses to public/quasi-public types
of uses and those types of things. So that's an important policy statement
that the Council should be apprised of. And I think we've heard a pretty
good discussion of some of the benefits and costs of this type of use in
terms of the opportunities for entrepreneurship and those types of things.
The income multipliers from this type of use are very strong relative to
some of the other types of tourism activity because of just the nature of
this type of accommodation. But it does have, it does have an affect on
the housing stock and the price and affordability of housing.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Done? Okay, at this point, I told you that I'd ask the Director
what is the Administration's policy at this point as to how you are going to
be enforcing the rules. We understand that there been a lot of people
being called up, and I want to have a definitive answer on the record as
what the Administration's policy at this point is regarding transient
accommodations, B&Bs.
MR. MIN: Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, a number of you were on
the Council last year when I think this discussion began. Our department
when we met with the Budget Committee, there were a lot of issues last
year regarding enforcement. You know why aren't you enforcing the bed
and breakfast permit requirements?
And upon conclusion of our
discussion, I made a commitment to this Council that we would review bed
and breakfast operations, we would obtain the list, we would contact the
operators and encourage them to come into compliance, apply for the
necessary permit, and that's what we've been doing, okay. Our focus has
been on the residential urban bed and breakfast operations because these
are the operations that are subject to the bed and breakfast permit, okay.
In the ag and the rural district, operators apply for a State Land Use
Commission Special Use Permit and a Conditional Use Permit because
the B&B permit does not apply to those areas. Our initial focus is on the
residential urban bed and breakfasts.
Now please understand that when we go through the list, the list doesn't
say you're zoned urban residential. We have to go through the list and
make calls and sometimes we have, we find out that they really not
operating a B&B. It may be a vacation rental. So we have to go through
this query in order to identify those operations that are actually in the
urban district, zoned residential and subject to the B&B permit.
Now, Mr. Pounds mentioned that probably one of our personnel from our
department may have called them, and said hey, why haven't you applied
for your permit? And I wanna apologize because I think an oversight was
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made and, you know, in the process of doing this I know that there were
some operators who had permits that were contacted. We didn't do the
necessary background check first which we should've done, and I
apologize to operators who were, who were confronted or inconvenienced
by that call. But like I said the focus was on the urban residential. We
want to go through that, complete that review first and then move into the
ag and the rural areas. But again, in the ag and rural areas we're talking
about a different permit requirement, okay. So that's been sort of the
nature of our enforcement.
In doing the enforcement, one more comment, we have obviously in the
follow-up calls to perspective operators of B&Bs, um, some of them may
be in the ag districts. Our inspectors are advising them that there are
permit requirements, okay. So you know we are, we are not just saying
thank you very much, good bye, okay. But again, the focus of our
enforcement is on the urban residential bed and breakfasts, okay. We
have sent letters out to operators who have not filed or obtained a B&B
permit. Okay, we're not telling anybody you can't operate because we're
not doing this on a complaint driven basis. And we're really trying to
encourage them to follow the necessary permits and become compliant,
okay. We realize in doing this that the procedures we have can be very
confusing, okay. And Will Spence in our office has been working on a little
informational packet that we hope will make it easier for a B&B operator to
fill out the application. And we don't wanna make it so difficult that people
don't wanna apply where it's gonna cost them a arm and a leg. And so we
are trying to do that, okay. I'd be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. Thanks, John. When you talk about sending
out letters, written notices to these folks to ask them to comply, what type
of consequences do you state in that written notice?
MR. MIN: If I recall, I think we have a general statement that if the application is
not filed, I believe it's within a month, that we will take necessary
enforcement action. We don't get more specific than that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do you have a set policy or a set of policies that will
guide you in necessary actions for people who are not complying?
MR. MIN: We would utilize our, our normal enforcement procedure and after the
letter goes out, we'll wait for the prescribed deadline to see if the
application has come in. If it hasn't come in, there'd be a follow-up call, a
reminder call. And if it, you know, if after a period of time there is no effort
to comply and we know that it is a operating bed and breakfast, then we
will issue a notice of warning.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you take it further, John.
MR. MIN: And again, we'll establish a time limit to submit the necessary
application. And if it's not done within that period of time, we'll send out a
second notice which is a notice of violation, and it's at that point that the
fines are kicked in. In order for us to, in order for us to undertake
enforcement actions where we utilize civil penalties or civil procedures as
oppose to the criminal procedures which we have to go to court for, we
have to issue notices or several warnings, several notices before we can
actually invoke any fines. So we have to go through that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do we have-CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go through the fines.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah ... and I was just gonna follow-up. Do we
have codified fines for this particular situation? Is it on code or in code?
MR. MIN: I'm not exactly sure, but we may follow the resident, the zoning
violation provisions in terms of the fines. I can double check that. I'm not
really sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman-CHAIR ARAKAWA:
talking.

Hopefully Brian would be able to get that what you're

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and all I'm trying to do is just track this thing,
yeah. When you say you're sending out written notices how it would play
out if somebody just decides to ignore everything. So I'm just trying to get
a sense of that and I'm sure there's other questions from other members.
Mr. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. Bob, you have a question.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Along the same line.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: John, I heard that you came before the Budget
Committee last year.
MR. MIN: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And all right ... how many notifications, how
many people have you identified in this past year in this past 365 days?
MR. MIN: Okay. I think our inspectors have reviewed--I'm doing this from
memory. The list is a very long list. We're talking about thousands of
listings which are either bed and breakfasts or transient vacation rentals. I
believe they've gone through about 2,500 out of a list of maybe close to
10,000, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Out of this-MR. MIN: And out of that they've identified and I'm thinking like around 20 in the
urban district, in the urban residential that have not applied or received a
permit and we've sent out letters to those.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Has anybody at the stage of notification of your
last, what would be your last step before being fine is anybody at that
point?
MR. MIN: I'm not sure. I'm not sure, you know--and let me explain why I can't
really answer that. Since the problems we've had with our building and
we've had to relocate to Civil Defense, it's been very difficult frankly for us
to continue this investigation, and I've told our inspectors at this point, you
know, go back and look at those that have, you know, we sent out letters
to let's try to get that cleaned up. Unfortunately a lot of our records and
files and whatnot are back in our building, and that's kind of slowed down
our enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: One last question. Do you think the system the
way it's operating and what you're doing is effective? And can it be
effective considering the number of bed and breakfasts that we think are
out there?
MR. MIN: Well, you know, when I mentioned thousands on this list, from our
experience many of the listings are not technically bed and breakfast
operations. They're transient vacation rentals or vacation rentals. Now I
guess to answer your question, you know, we're proceeding within, you
know, the best we can to go through these lists. It takes time to do these
investigations. Just because you have a list it doesn't mean that you
automatically, you know, we can automatically assume that this operation
is occurring. We have to go back and research the files, have they gotten
a permit, we have to contact the operator, we have to verify that there's an
operation and go through that process before we can take the next step.
So enforcement does take time and it's not something that we can just
plow into, and we have to, you know, research each one individually.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: One thing I am happy is that you now have a
substantial list of vacation rentals, short-term vacation rentals. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: If ... I'm gonna interject a little bit here, Bob, with your
question and a follow-up. That's one of the reasons why I believe we
have to start looking at some of the other types of short-term rentals and
trying to put some definition there and some kind of reference as to how
we want to deal with those, you know, how we want to either legitimatize
them or not, okay. So that's gonna be part of the discussion as we get
more into this.
Now when we start getting into what we can and cannot do, that's also
something within the power of this Council as to what kind of fines, you
know, we'd like to see the department working with and working with them
they will be able to within their rules establish what is available. So if
we're going to be looking at this entire area, we're going to have to at this
point you can understand ag and rural because we have to work with the
State on the Special Use Permit, is different from the residential and the
others. So there are two separate ways that we have to look at this, and
it's gonna be very complicated and we're gonna try and map this out to
make it less complicated as to the different directions we need to work
with the different types of organizations, but you'll see a very clear distinct
difference between ag and rural and the residential area, okay, because
the State Special Use Permit those requirements we cannot get around
them at this time, okay, whereas within the County rules we have a little bit
more room for adjustment. Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, just one question. John, as a part of your
checking as to whether these are legitimate or not legitimate, do you ask
to see their GET records and if they're filing for doing any TAT, do you
check any of that?
MR. MIN: I don't believe we actually ask them to produce those documents. We
simply ask them are you operating.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That would be something for me any way that I
would really wanna see because of the issues raised by Mr. Pounds,
thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wait, before we go on, Jo Anne what you're asking is a very
good question because when we brought the B&B earlier when we first
started working on this bill, there was a concern about what the
department could actually do to enforce and where the scope of their
authority goes. So I'd like to ask Mr. Moto to try and explain some of the
scopes of authority and what they'd have to do, what the department
would have to do in order to get the authority to go ahead and actually try
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and find a business or to take an action against a business. Brian, could
you go through that or have John go through that.
MR. MOTO: Well, Mr. Chairman, in addition to what the Planning Director has
already described, which is the administrative enforcement procedures,
and for the record I'll note that ... I believe he was summarizing those
procedures that are described in Section 19.530.030 of the County Code
which address civil penalties, civil fines. They generally are in the amount
of $1,000 for a violation and $1,000 for each day for which the--or doing
which the violation persist.
As the Planning Director noted, any
enforcement action, including administrative enforcement actions,
essentially depends upon building a good case which involves first of all
compiling a record of facts that can serve as evidence in any proceedings
should the matter go to court or should the matter be appealed. It is
department's procedure to issue notices of warning to those suspected of
violation. The purpose of that is to put the person on notice of the
violation and to provide an opportunity for those parties to correct the
matter or to, or to attempt to seek compliance by filing an adequate permit
application. In addition to civil fines, there are provisions for criminal
enforcement and also civil actions that can obtain injunctive relief. In other
words an order from the court ... enjoining the use, essentially closing
down the transient accommodation rental. That's in a nutshell.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: There's just one caveat to this Jo Anne and perhaps Brian
will expand on it. The burden of proof to be able to establish a case from
the department's perspective, having to actually go in and prove that there
is a violation, is a very murky one to go in and say that this person is
operating an illegal activity and trying to build that case. Once that case is
built, what Brian is saying is true, but to build that case is very difficult and
perhaps you can expound on that, John.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Yes, Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question would be based on what's said, do
we or do we not have the authority then to even request that information?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, that's where the cloud when we discussed this a few
years back, this is where that cloud was as to what the ability the
department had to go in to enter the premise to be able to prove that
everything ... there was an illegal operation there whether they could or
could not just, you know, walk in on somebody and demand information.
It's kind of unfair and I'll, I'll say this.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: It's kind of unfair because John was not the director at the
time we had a lot of this discussion.
MR. MIN: Mr. Chairman, you know, if it's okay, what I'd like to do is to verify with
our enforcement staff the information that we request of perspective
operators and report back to the Council.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay. I know I put you in a very unfair position. Mike you
had a question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. A question for the
Planning Director. John, it was mentioned that the applications for bed
and breakfast is in ag zone and rural areas is usually a two-permit
process, if I'm correct, one through the County and one I guess through
the State. Has your department considered streamlining this where it just
goes through one channel or, you know, either through the County or just
through the State?
MR. MIN: Well, in terms of the State requirement, the only way that we could
change that would be to amend Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 205.
We would have to amend the State Land Use law.
In terms of the Conditional Use Permit, the reason that's required is
related to the provisions of Maui County Code related to the rural district
and the agricultural district. And that would be a policy issue that I think
needs to be ... or that could be discussed by this Committee in terms of
the permit procedure.
There certainly is an opportunity to change the current procedure that we
have, okay. And if, for example, the, urn, in Maui County Code for the
rural and ag district, the requirement for a Conditional Permit for a bed and
breakfast was not ... if we specify let's say a bed and breakfast as a
special use in the ag and the rural district and provided that if you obtain a
State Land Use Commission Special Use Permit that it would satisfy that
requirement, then obviously we would eliminate one out of two permits,
okay. But that's a policy question that I think, you know, the Committee
would need to consider and certainly there are options to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I guess I bring that up if say we eliminated the
permit process via the County, then that might leave out people
expressing their, you know, opinions about having bed and breakfasts in
the rural areas, people who may not want that. So I'm just kinda throwing
that out at you 'cause maybe it would leave out, you know, 'cause you're
looking at people, the farmers and people out in the rural area suddenly
the possibility of having their neighborhoods being inundated with bed and
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breakfasts and, you know, we as a Council we should take that into
consideration also. So I was just throwing that out and thinking of ways to
not only take their concerns into consideration, but also maybe
streamlining the process also.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Just to refresh your memory, when the Planning Department
was going over earlier what the Special Use ... the Special Use Permit
required notification of adjacent landowners, the Conditional Use requires
500 feet. So there's a difference in what the notification level is as well,
okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Wayne.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, but in a lot of instances 500 feet in an
agricultural area or rural area is-CHAIR ARAKAWA: I'm not gonna argue with that. It's just what it is. (chuckled)
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, but, but ... yeah, that's not ... well, that may
be a concern later. John, I think the thrust in which you've gone towards
is admirable. The concern is legitimatizing these people and what has
been the, you know, you said that they all don't fall into this category. A
lot of 'em probably fall into not B&B but vacation rental. But those that
have fallen into B&B, what has been the response from those people that
say acknowledge yes, I'm doing it, and I wanna legitimatize? I think that's
probably what we wanna hear. Because our thrust was to look at it as an
income producing so, you know, I don't wanna scare people with heavy
fines. I think what we wanna try to do is encourage them into saying okay,
yeah, I operate a B&B now and so I need to go through the process.
What kind of successes have you had and do you have actual numbers?
MR. MIN: I don't have the actual numbers right now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, what about successes or how are people
cooperating?
MR. MIN: I noticed that since we sent out the letters, we've received a number of
B&B applications. Okay, so obviously I think people are getting the letter
and are responding, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: All right.
MR. MIN: As far as the numbers, I couldn't give you that right now. I'll check
that and I can provide that to you and the Committee.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:
And is that person that is cast with this
responsibility how are they ... are they able to do the job efficiently with
the personnel that you have?
MR. MIN: Well, we have a number of personnel that are involved in this. We
have our inspectors. Our zoning inspectors. We also have our staff
planners and we have several planners who are working on this. It's too
much for anyone staff to handle. You know obviously--I mean you're
familiar with the staffing situation in our office, and when you get a flood
of, I don't wanna say flood, but when you get a number of these
applications that are filed, you know, it does involve, you know, some
additional work but-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, well, we offered you manpower.
MR. MIN: That's true. And, you know, again we're I think trying to, you know,
meet the, trying to address this in the best way we can. Again what we're
trying to do to make work easier for all parties concerned is to come up
with an informational packet that will save us time from having to answer
questions and maybe we can just provide in a flyer.
So that's a
suggestion that came out from our staff involvement in this. He said hey,
you know, we think there's a way that we can simplify this so that, you
know, it saves them time, it saves applicants time ... so we're working on
that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Mr. Chairman, because I think the thrust of
this concern arose from the fact of the rest of us having to compensate
these people that are doing it. So I'm sure that we don't want to in any
way inhibit them from coming forward. We want them to cooperate with
us and we wanna be easy. So John I think where you're headed is good.
I would hope that as we pursue this direction that also you would check
with Mr. Moto so that all we need is one mistake and then a big lawsuit.
We don't wanna see that occur. And so hopefully from the angle of
getting the community work with us and us looking at how we're going to
do this process that we're doing it with also watching the legal arena. I
mean what Jo Anne brought up, you know, I don't know if we can ask
those kinds of questions but, you know, the internet surely opens up and
specifically finding out what and how people are advertising. I think that's
pretty open. I don't know how you were able to get 10,000 but that's not
the point that I am directing my concerns about it. It has to do with getting
these people to work with us and finding the easiest way to get them, you
know, registering.
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MR. MIN: Yeah. And, you know, as I recall I believe it is a requirement in the
bed and breakfast ordinance that the operator provide a copy of their
GET.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay.
MR. MIN: And TAT records.
ordinance.

So it is a, I believe a requirement in the B&B

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Any way, just an update Mr. Chairman from, you
know, as far as how they're going about it and, and it seems like
it's ... you know I'm glad that they're moving. I think all of us are.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, that's why I wanted to bring this information forward.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The other part I think is a little sticky the long term
and I just, I think that's for another day.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Well, we're not gonna get into that today per se, but again,
I'm gonna ask Charmaine do you have any questions? Okay. Then what
I wanna do at this point is I'm gonna almost wrap it up for now for today,
but what I wanted to make sure was everybody was aware that we have
some policy decision we have to make, and one of those is primarily those
operators that are operating right now that are not legitimize, do we want
to make those operations have the ability to become legitimate and create
these different areas. Another alternative we have is to allow the system
to just stay where it is and not create the definitions and go through the
Special Use and Conditional Use Permit process which is very expensive
process.
In the ag area, we have to decide whether or not we're going to want to
deal with bed and breakfast in the agriculture area or any other of the
permutations for short-term rentals, okay. And these are policy decisions I
think we're gonna have to make decisions on or we're gonna have to
come to consensus.
So at this point, I'm just gonna ask all of you to go back and think about it
and we'll try and prepare some of the other information. And again, it's
very critical I think in trying to do the analysis to go out and talk to people
that are in the businesses trying to understand what they're trying to do,
as well as at the same time when we come back to it part of the provisions
we can make is if we do make this legitimize, legitimize these, we can
change the tax structure so they automatically come hotel and other tax
rate that reflects what the business is, okay.
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So there's gonna be a lot of, there's gonna be a lot that we need to
discuss and we need to work out. At the same time I will pOint out the
department, the Board of Realtors and there's some other things being
floated right now for legislation for us to consider. So as those become
more formalized, I'll be presenting them to this Committee so that you can
look at it. At this point, again, if there are no more questions, what I'm
gonna do is I'm gonna ask you to go back and really think about the
general policy decision. Do we or do we not want to allow these types of
operations to become legitimize? Do we want to limit them somehow?
And if we're going to legitimize them, what is our process gonna be? Are
we gonna try using the carrot or the stick? Are we gonna try and make
things a lot easier and try and see what we can work through the process,
or are we going to try and torture everybody that comes through the
process and get them up 20, $50,000 and make it very difficult for them to
want to come in? And I do know from experience and a lot of the people
that have applied under the B&B when they, we went through this process
and we tried to make it so that they could become legitimate, paid a very
heavy penalty in dollars to actually come through the process to try and
legitimize. So that's a consideration we need to work on as to whether or
not we can actually alleviate some of that cost for them. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Dain.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And if I can just get some clarification on two things
that were said.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's not a whole new area. One is John, you talked
about the list that you folks have compiled, a list of approximately 10,000
entries. Are you folks integrating that through MIS or GIS or wherever that
would be appropriate that with this new computer system with through
SERV is gonna be able to implement somehow in assisting you folks in
compiling this information and being able to use it as a reference point to
go back--I mean is there anything there that you folks can utilize that
would assist you or enhance your folks capabilities to attract these things?
MR. MIN: Yes, we are developing a database for bed and breakfast operations.
And as we go through list and we identify bed and breakfast operations,
they are being put into the database.
One other comment. I threw out the number 10,000 and you know I don't
know if it's 10,000 or if it's 8,000 or 7,000. I know it's in the thousands. I
think it's safe to say that, okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
MR. MIN: And like I said that number includes vacation rentals and B&Bs, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so that's my final question that I'm gonna ask
you since you just said it because it's listed on our agenda. Is there a
distinction or a difference between a bed and breakfast and a transient
vacation rental?
MR. MIN: Yes, there is.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, and the reason I'm asking that is because
we're talking about bed and breakfast, which we already have an existing
ordinance, and yet on the agenda we're talking about transient vacation
rentals as though we had some sort of ordinance with that too. And so
that's why I'm just asking why would we be talking about--it seems like the
discussion should be based around bed and breakfasts because we have
existing ordinance 19.64 and we're just trying to get a grasp on that, and
yet there, it seems like it's been broaden. So, Mr. Chair, I don't know if
that's something that you intended to do and I just-CHAIR ARAKAWA: That was very deliberate-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --wanted to, because it seems like the way, it says
bed and breakfast operations then in parenthesis it talks about B&B and
transient vacation rentals. So it kind of makes it seems like they are the
same and so I was just kind of confused and that's why I wanted to get
that statement out there.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: And that's why I phrased it at the beginning that there's a lot
of parts to this that we need to discuss and how we wanna discuss it. So
we took the bed and breakfast and that was just a small segment of the
whole industry and now we have to figure out how we want to work it,
what kind of phrases we wanna use and that's why it's phrased the way it
is, and we'll get into the further discussions.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, Mr. Chair then, transient and vacation rentals at
this point in time is, would be considered no matter where it is an illegal
operation?
CHAIR ARAKAWA: At this point, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have one final question.
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CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, one final question, Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, I like the final question. John, you've
identified a lot of the short-term rentals already in looking for that. Have
you sent out any letters of violation to them.
MR. MIN: The old ... well, for short-term rentals we have been setting, we have
been doing active enforcement with the letters, the notices and so forth if
we have a complaint.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So if there's no complaint you just fine them on
your own?
MR. MIN: No. If, if, if, we have not been sending out any letters for vacation
rentals that we do not have a complaint on. Like I mentioned earlier, our
focus has been on the bed and breakfast operations in the urban
residential district. That's been our focus.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The only thing I can say is perhaps we need to
consider a change of policy on that, but that's all for today. Thank you.
CHAIR ARAKAWA: Okay, if not, I'm gonna call the meeting adjourned.
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